






























































































































 

 

UNIVERSAL SOMPO GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 
 
 
Registration No.: 134                Date of Registration: 16th November 2007 
 
Management Report 
 
In accordance with Part II of Schedule II of the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India 

(Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024, and with respect to the 
operations of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, the Management of the Company submits the 
following Report: 
 
1.  The Company obtained regulatory approval to undertake General Insurance business on November 16, 

2007 from Insurance Regulatory Development Authority of India (IRDAI) and holds a valid certificate of 
registration. 
 

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, all the dues payable to the statutory authorities for the year ended 
March 31, 2025 have been duly paid. 

 
3. We confirm that the shareholding pattern during the year ended March 31, 2025 was in accordance with 

the Statutory and / or regulatory requirements.  
 

4. We declare that the funds of the holders of polices issued in India have not been directly or indirectly 
invested outside India.  

 
5. We confirm that the required solvency margin has been maintained. 

 
6. We certify that the values of all assets have been reviewed on the date of the Balance Sheet and to the 

as at March 31, 
2025 are shown in the aggregate at amounts not exceeding their realizable or market value, under the 
headings  

ing ersons 

IRDAI Regulations. 
 

7. The entire gross risk exposure of the portfolio consists of fire, marine, engineering, motor, health, personal 
accident, workmen  compensation, liability, Aviation, Trade credit, crop insurance and other lines of 
business. 

 
The overall exposure is spread over various sectors including but not limited to power, textile, heavy and 
light engineering, paper, services, fast moving consumer goods, auto components, etc. across urban and 
rural segments as well as across demography.  
 
The business underwritten pertains to the various products filed by us as per the revised IRDAI guidelines 
issued for filing of products. 
 
The Company has put in place a reinsurance program. The risks underwritten by the Company are covered 
adequately by the reinsurance treaties as per reinsurance program which cover both the gross risks through 
proportional treaties and net risks through non-proportional treaties. The Company monitors the exposure 
closely and effective remedial action is taken wherever deemed necessary. 

 
8. There were no operations of the Company in any other country during the year ended March 31, 2025. 



 

 

9. a) For ageing analysis of claims outstanding during the preceding five years, please refer Annexure 1. 
b) For average claims settlement time during the preceding five years, please refer Annexure 2. 

 
10. We certify that the investments made in debt securities including government securities are considered as 

of discount on a straight-line basis over the holding / maturity period in accordance with the Regulations. 
The realized gain or loss on the securities is the differences between sale consideration and the amortized 

 
 
For the purpose of comparison, the fair market value of debt securities has been arrived on a yield to maturity 
(YTM) basis by using the appropriate discount rates derived from the yield curve data provided by the Fixed 
Income and Money Market Dealers Association (FIMMDA) 

 
The listed equities at the balance sheet date are valued based on the last quoted closing price on the NSE 
and in case these are not listed on the NSE then based on last quoted closing price on the BSE.  
 
Mutual fund investments are stated at fair value, being the closing net asset value as at the balance sheet 
date.  
 
In accordance with the regulations, unrealized gain/loss arising due to changes in fair value of listed equity 
shares and mutual fund investment are not taken to revenue(s) / profit and loss account but are taken to 
the fair value change account. This balance in the fair value change account is not available for distribution, 
pending realization.  
 
In respect of impaired investments, the impairment loss is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. 
 

11. Investment portfolio as on March 31, 2025 is  5,27,358 lakhs (previous year  4,61,249 lakhs) as per 
schedule 8 & 8A.  
 
Income from investment operations for the year ended March 31, 2025 is  36,349 lakhs (previous year  
30,301 Lakhs). 
 
Investments other than deposits with the banks, units of mutual funds and Alternate Investment Fund are 
done in regularly traded instruments in the secondary market. The debt investment comprises 
largely of Central and State Government securities, PSU Bonds, AAA and AA+/A1+ rated corporate 
bonds/debt securities. 
  
All investments of the Company are performing investments except investment in bonds of Infrastructure 

 On maturity, unsettled Investment receivables pertaining 
to security issued by Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Services Limited (IL&FS) has been classified to 
Schedule  12 Advances & Other Assets. 
 

securities in earlier years. It 

reversal of provisions made in earlier years. The INVIT units got listed on March 11, 2025, but were valued 
at face value without any MTM adjustment as on March 31, 2025, due to no trading since listing. Amount 

entire amount has been fully provided in the books of accounts. 
 



 

 

Unrealized loss arising due to changes in the fair value of listed equity shares, Mutual Fund and Alternate 
 

 

the same investment is charged to the Profit & Loss Account. 
  
Investments are managed in consonance with the investment policy framed from time to time by the Board 
in compliance with the investment Regulations and guidelines of IRDAI. 

 
12. The Management of the Company certifies that: 

a. In the preparation of the financial statements, the applicable accounting standards, principles, and 
policies have been followed and there are no material departures. 
 

b. The company has adopted accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Company as of March 31, 2025 and of operating profit/loss of Fire, Marine and 
Miscellaneous Insurance business and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended. 
 

c. The Management of the Company has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Insurance Act, 
1938, (4 of 1938) read with the Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015 including various 
amendments, circulars and regulation issued by IRDAI from time to time and the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities. 

 
d. The Management has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. 
 
e. The management has ensured that an internal audit system commensurate with the size and the 

nature of the business exists and is operating effectively. 
 
13. The schedule of payments which have been made to the individuals, firms, companies and organizations in 

which the Directors of the Company are interested is given as Annexure 3 for the year ended March 31, 
2025. 

  



 

 

 
14. The Company does not have any subsidiary, associates, joint ventures or other arrangements. 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                                                                          
 
    
 
                                                                                     
Mahesh Kumar Bajaj Chhaya Palrecha 
Non-Executive Director Director 
DIN no. 08080244 DIN no. 06914875 
 
 
 
 

 

Sharad Mathur   Nilesh Mejari 
Managing Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer 
DIN no. 08754740 Membership no. 109753 
 
 
 
 

 

 Aarti Kamath 
 Company Secretary         
 Membership no. FCS 6703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2025 
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Annexure 3 

(Rs. in Lakhs )

Sr. No. Name of the Director Entity in which Director is interested Interested as  Payment during the 
year 

Mr. Shanti Lal Jain Chairman

Mr. Satish Kumar

Mr. Mahesh Kumar Bajaj

Mr. Gopal Sarvesan

Mr. Ajay Kumar Srivastava
3 Mr. Sekhar Rao The Karnataka Bank  Non-Executive Director 2,048.60                         

4 Mr. Daniel Neo Sompo Japan Insurance Inc. 11,749.26                       

Mr. Aditya Tibrewala Sompo Insurance Singapore Pte Ltd. 0.91                                

Mr. Kenneth Reilly Sompa Holding INC 4.61                                

Mr. Takashi Kurumisawa Sompo Sigorta A.S. 26.57                              
5 Mr.Mohit Burman Dabur Investment Corporation  Non-Executive Director 176.89                            

(Rs. in Lakhs )

Sr.No. Amount Nature of payments

1 Shanti Lal Jain 4.50                                                                 Director sitting Fee
2 Aditya Vardhan Tibrewala 16.00                                                               Director sitting Fee
3 Ajay Kumar Srivastava 1.00                                                                 Director sitting Fee
4 Bhaskar Jyoti Sarma 20.75                                                               Director sitting Fee
5 Chhaya Manoj Palrecha 17.00                                                               Director sitting Fee
6 Daniel Neo 2.50                                                                 Director sitting Fee
7 G C Rangan 21.25                                                               Director sitting Fee
8 Kenneth Reilly 2.75                                                                 Director sitting Fee
9 Mahesh Kumar Bajaj 16.50                                                               Director sitting Fee
10 Mohit Burman 8.50                                                                 Director sitting Fee
11 Sarvesan Gopal 13.00                                                               Director sitting Fee
12 Satish Kumar 8.50                                                                 Director sitting Fee
13 Sekhar Rao 9.00                                                                 Director sitting Fee
14 Takashi Kurumisawa 12.50                                                               Director sitting Fee

153.75                                                             

2
Indian Overseas Bank 1,803.14                         

Total

Name of the Director

Sitting Fees paid to Directors

 Non-Executive Director

UNIVERSAL SOMPO GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

List of payments to parties in which Directors are interested 

1

Indian Bank 2,292.45                         
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INDEPENDENT STATUTORY  REPORT 
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF  
UNIVERSAL SOMPO GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED  
 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Universal Sompo General 
Insurance Company Limited lance Sheet as at March 
31, 2025, the Revenue Accounts of Fire, Marine and Miscellaneous Insurance Business 

 the Profit and Loss Account and the Receipts and 
Payments Account for the year then ended, and schedules to the financial statements, including 
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes (hereinafter 
referred to . 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required, in accordance with the 
Insurance Act, 1938, as amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015 (the  

 the the Insurance 
Regulatory and Development Authority (Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of 
Insurers) Regulations, 2024 (the  AFI Regulations 2024  order / directions,      circulars, 
guidelines issued by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (the 
in this regard and the C to the extent applicable and 
in the manner so required, and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting 
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended   and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India which are not inconsistent with the accounting principles as 
prescribed in the IRDA AFI Regulations 2024: 

i. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025; 
ii. in the case of the Revenue Accounts, of the operating profits in so far as it relates to the 

Revenue Account for Fire Insurance and Miscellaneous Insurance and of the Operating Loss 
so far as it relates to Marine Insurance for the year ended March 31, 2025; 

iii. in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended March 31, 2025; 
and 

iv. in the case of the Receipts and Payments Account, of the receipts and payments for the 
year  ended March 31, 2025. 

 
 
 
 
 

(Converted into LLP w.e.f. 15th 
December 2023) 
Sunil Patodia Tower 
J.B. Nagar, Andheri (East), 
Mumbai  400 099  
  

305, Lodha Supremus, 
Off Mahakali Caves Road, 
Andheri East, 
Mumbai  400 069 



S K Patodia & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

S. C. Bapna & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

 

Page 2 of 13  

 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs) specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

section of 
issued by the 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI  Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
We draw attention to the following notes included in the schedule 16 of the financial 
statements-  
 

a) Note No. 41 of Schedule 16 to the financial statements, regarding accounting of Co-
Insurance, Re-Insurance (RI) and related Balances Confirmation  

 
b) Note No. 42 of Schedule 16 to the financial statements, which describes the effect of 

change in impairment policy for investments other than Debt instruments.  
 
Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.  
 
Key audit matters: 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

 
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated: 
 

1. Information Technology Systems and Controls (IT Controls) related to financial reporting 
The Company is highly dependent on its complex IT architecture comprising hardware, software, 
multiple applications, automated interfaces and controls in systems for recording, storing and 
reporting financial transactions. 
 
A number of independent and inter-dependent IT systems are used by the Company for 
processing and recording the large volume of transactions on daily basis as part of its operations, 
which impacts key financial accounting and reporting items such as premium income, claims, 
commission, expenses and investments amongst others. 
 
There exists a risk that, gaps in the IT control environment could result in the financial 
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accounting and reporting records being materially misstated. 
 
The controls implemented by the Company in its IT environment determine the integrity, 
accuracy, completeness, and the validity of the data that is processed by the applications and is 
ultimately used for financial reporting. These controls contribute to mitigating risk of potential 
misstatements caused by fraud or errors. 
 
Our audit approach relies on automated controls and therefore, procedures are designed to test 
controls over IT systems, segregation of duties, interface and system application controls over 
key financial accounting and reporting systems. 
 
Due to, complexity and pervasive impact of the IT systems and related control environment on 

esting of such IT systems and related 
control environment as a key audit matter for the current year audit. 
 
How our Audit addressed this Key Matter: 
 
Our key audit procedures included, but were not limited to the following: 
 
We involved our IT specialists to perform procedures which included, but were not limited to 
the following: 
 

databases. Furthermore, we conducted a risk assessment and identified IT applications, 
 

 
 For the IT systems relevant to reporting of financial information, we have tested design 

and operative effectiveness of key IT general controls over the key IT systems that are 
critic
segregation of duties and access rights being provisioned/ modified based on duly 
approved requests, access for exit cases being revoked in a timely manner and access of 
all users being re-certified during the period of audit. Further, controls related to program 
change were evaluated to verify whether the changes were approved, tested in an 
environment that was segregated from production and moved to production by 
appropriate users. Where deficiencies were identified, tested compensating controls 
and/or performed additional substantive audit procedures as required to mitigate any 
risk of material misstatement with respect to related financial statement line item. 

 Evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of critical and key automated 
controls within various business processes around the software systems. This included 
testing the integrity of system interfaces, report logic for system generated reports 
relevant to the audit of premium income, commission expense, claims and investments, 
for evaluating completeness and accuracy. 

 
 Reviewed the Information System Audit Reports and Key audit findings of Internal Audit 

to assess the impact of observations and manage
reporting. 
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 Obtained written representations from management on whether IT general controls and 
automated IT controls are designed and were operating effectively during the year. 

 
2. Investments (Refer Schedule 8 and 8A of the financial statements and refer schedule 16 

note 2.10 on accounting policy) 
 

 

Shareholders investments. Total investment portfolio represents 79% of the total assets 
as at March 31, 2025 which are valued in accordance with accounting policy framed as per 
the extant regulatory guidelines. 
 

 The valuation of all investments is as per the investment policy framed by the Company 
as per the requirements contained in with IRDAI (Investment) Regulations, 2016, and the 
IRDA Preparation of Financial Statement Regulations. The valuation methodology 
specified in these aforesaid regulations is applied by the Company for each class of 
investment which includes various measurement techniques such as amortised cost, fair 
value, etc. as further described in note 2.10 to the accompanying financial statements. 
 

 The Company has a policy framework for valuation and impairment of Investments. The 
Company performs an impairment review of its investments at each balance sheet date 
and recognizes impairment charge when the investments meet the trigger/s for 
impairment provision as per the criteria set out in the investment policy of the Company. 
Such assessment of impairment involves significant management judgment. 
 

 The valuation of these investments was considered one of the matters of material 
significance in the financial statements due to the materiality of the total value of 
investments to the financial statements and thereby identified as a key audit matter for 
current year audit. 
 

 How our Audit addressed this Key Matter: 
 

 Our audit procedures on Investments included the following: 
 

 ation and 
impairment process. 
 

 Tested the design, implementation, management oversight and operating effectiveness of 
key controls over the valuation process of investments including impairment. 
 

 Obtained independent external confirmations for investments as at balance sheet date 
from the Custodians and Depository Participants appointed by the Company to confirm 
the units of securities for the purpose of valuation re-computation. 
 

 On a test check basis, recomputed valuation of different class of investments to assess 
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies with reference to IRDA AFI Regulations, 
2024,  
 

 Examined movement and appropriateness of accounting in Fair Value Change account for 
specific investments. 
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charge on investments outstanding at the year end. 
 

 Examined the rating downgrades by credit rating agencies and assessed the adequacy of 
impairments to various investments. 
 

 Evaluated appropriateness and reasonableness of methodology, assumptions and 

and impairment assessment as per policy. 
 

 Obtained written representations from management on compliance of valuation of 
investments with the regulations and adequacy of impairment recorded for the year. 

 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and  Report Thereon 
 

information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Directors Report, Management 
Discussion & Analysis Report but does not include the financial statements and our  
report thereon. The other information as above is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this Auditor s Report. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance and conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 
to determine whether there is a material misstatement of the other information. If based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of these other 
information, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.  
 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial  Statements 
 

that give a true and fair view of the financial position financial performance and Receipts and 
Payment Account of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Sec 133 of the Act read 
with relevant rules issued thereunder, which are not inconsistent with the accounting principles 
as prescribed in IRDA AFI Regulations 2024, the IRDA Act and the circulars/orders/directions 
issued by the IRDAI in this regard. 
 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 



S K Patodia & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

S. C. Bapna & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

 

Page 6 of 13  

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the 

 ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the  financial reporting 
process. 
 

 Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

 report     that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the           aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of our audit in accordance with Standard of Auditing, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.         We also: 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the  use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on  
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
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required to 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our  report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
the relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships      and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Other Matter 
 
a) The actuarial valuation of liabilities in respect of Claims Incurred but Not Reported ("IBNR"), 

Incurred but Not Enough Reported ("IBNER") is 
the responsibility of the Company's Appointed Actuary (the "Appointed Actuary"). The  
actuarial valuation of these liabilities that are estimated using statistical methods, Premium 
Deficiency Reserve (the "PDR"), IBNR and IBNER as at March 31, 2025 have been certified 
by the Appointed Actuary and in his opinion, the assumptions for such valuation are in 
accordance with the guidelines and norms issued by the IRDAI and the Institute of Actuaries 
of India in concurrence with the Authority. We have relied upon the Appointed Actuary's 
certificate in this regard for forming our opinion on the valuation of liabilities for outstanding 
claims reserve and PDR, as contained in the financial Statements.  

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by the Part III of Schedule II of the IRDA AFI Regulations 2024, we have issued a 

separate certificate dated May 9, 2025 certifying the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of part III of Schedule II to the IRDA AFI Regulations 2024. 

2. This Report does not include a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of 
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the   
Government of India in terms of sub-section 11 of Section 143 of the Act, since in our opinion 
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the said Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

3. As required under paragraph 2 of Part III of Schedule II of the IRDA AFI Regulations 2024, 
read with Section 143 (3) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations give to us, we report to the extent applicable that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b) In our opinion, Proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters 
stated in the paragraph 2 (j) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014;  

c) ting system is centralized at Head Office, no returns 
for the purposes of audit are prepared at the branches of the Company; 

d) The Balance Sheet, the Revenue Accounts, the Profit and Loss Account, and the Receipts 
and Payments Account dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 

e) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us,     the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act to the extent they are not inconsistent with the accounting 
principles prescribed in the IRDA AFI Regulations, 2024 and orders / directions issued 
by   IRDAI in this regard; 

f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us,   investments have been valued in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance 
Act, the IRDA AFI Regulations, 2024, the Insurance Act and / or orders / directions / 
circulars / guidelines issued by the IRDAI in this regard; 

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the accounting policies selected by the Company are appropriate and are in 
compliance with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, to the 
extent they are not inconsistent with the accounting principles prescribed in the IRDA 
AFI Regulations, 2024 and orders / directions issued by the IRDAI in this regard;  

h) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 
2025 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of 
the Act; 

i) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in   Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the  internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements. 

j) With respect to the other matters to be included in the  
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with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our 
opinion and   to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 
in its financial statements - Refer Note 3 of Schedule 16 to the financial statements; 

ii. The liability for insurance contracts, is determined by the 
Actuary as per Note 13 (a), 13 (b) and Note 29 of Schedule 16 in the financial 
statements and as referred to in Other Matter section above, on which we have placed 
reliance; and the Company did not have any other long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than  as  disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

 understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,    directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

 guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe 
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under 
(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

d) Based on our examination on test check basis and on verification of SOC 2 report from 
Service P ny has used accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come 
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with except the party wise 
commission, co-insurance and re-insurance records are maintained in MS Excel 
sheets accordingly the audit trail feature is not available for the same. 

Additionally, the audit trail wherever applicable has been preserved by the 
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 
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k) 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with 
the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with section 34A of the Insurance Act. 

l) As stated in Note 34 of Schedule 16 to the financial statements: 

a. The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company 
during the year is in compliance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable. 

b. The Company has not declared or paid interim dividend during the year. 

c. The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year 
which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in compliance with section 123 of the 
Act, as applicable. 

 

 

 
For S C Bapna & Associates For S K Patodia & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 115649W Firm Registration No: 112723W/W100962 
  

Jai Prakash Gupta Ankush Goyal 
Partner Partner 
Membership No: 088903 Membership No: 146017 
UDIN : 25088903BMUHYK6063 UDIN : 25146017BNUHQG8358 
  
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 9, 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: May 9, 2025 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT  REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UNIVERSAL SOMPO GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY 
LIMITED 

  the Independent  Report of even date to the members of 
Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited on the financial statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2025) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 
under     Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the  

  
1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements 

of Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited 
31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date. 

 
 Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 
2. 

financial controls based on the internal control with reference to the financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

 include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the  
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act including the provisions of the 
Insurance Act, 1938 as amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015 (the 

 
y and Development Authority (Actuarial, Finance and 

/ directions, circulars, guidelines issued by the Insurance Regulatory and Development 
 

 
 Responsibility 

 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
with reference to the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements 



S K Patodia & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

S. C. Bapna & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

 

Page 12 of 13  

were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
with reference to the financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
controls based on the assessed risk. The 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a 
reference to the financial statements. 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

 
6. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with the 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with 
reference to the financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditure of the company are being made only in accordance with 
the authorization of the Management and the directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial 
Statements 

 
7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the 

financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial controls with reference to the financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to the financial statements and such internal financial controls 
with reference to the financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, 
based on the internal control with reference to the financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.  

Other Matter 
 

9. The actuarial valuation of liabilities in respect of Claims Incurred but Not Reported 
("IBNR"), Incurred but Not Enough Reported ("IBNER") and Premium Deficiency Reserve 

Actuary"). The actuarial valuation of these liabilities that are estimated using statistical 
methods, Premium Deficiency Reserve (the "PDR"), IBNR and IBNER as at March 31, 2025 
have been certified by the Appointed Actuary and in his opinion, the assumptions for such 
valuation are in accordance with the guidelines and norms issued by the IRDAI and the 
Institute of Actuaries of India in concurrence with the Authority. We have relied upon the 
Appointed Actuary's certificate in this regard for forming our opinion on the valuation of 
liabilities for outstanding claims reserve and PDR, as contained in the financial Statements. 
for the year ended March 31, 2025. Accordingly, our opinion on the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements does not include reporting on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the internal controls over the valuation and accuracy of the 
aforesaid actuarial liabilities. 

 
 

 
For S C Bapna & Associates For S K Patodia & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 115649W Firm Registration No: 

112723W/W100962 
  

Jai Prakash Gupta Ankush Goyal 
Partner Partner 
Membership No: 088903 Membership No: 146017 
UDIN : 25088903BMUHYK6063 UDIN : 25146017BNUHQG8358 
  
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 9, 2025 Date: May 9, 2025 
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 CERTIFICATE 

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF UNIVERSAL SOMPO GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY 
LIMITED (the  

 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements forming 
part of the Statutory Joint dated May 9, 2025) 

1. We have been requested by the Company having registered office at 8th & 9th Floor, (part-
south side), Commerz, International Business Park, Oberoi Garden City, Off Western Express 
Highway, Goregaon East, Mumbai, Goregaon East, Maharashtra, India, 400063, to issue a 
certificate in accordance with the terms of engagement letters dated August 5, 2024.This 
certificate is issued to comply with the provisions of Part II of Schedule II of the Insurance 

. 

 Responsibility 

2. The Management is responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the 
requirements of the Insurance Act, 1938 as amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendment) 
Act, 2015 (the 

Insurance Regulatory and 
(Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024  

, orders / directions issued by the Insurance Regulatory and Development 
Authority of India (the ponsibility includes collecting, collating, validating 
data, designing, implementing and monitoring of internal controls relevant for ensuring 
compliance with the Provisions of Part II of Schedule II of the  and 
provide all relevant information to IRDAI and making estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances. 

 Responsibility 

3. Pursuant to the requirements of the Regulations, our responsibility, for the purpose of this 
certificate, is to provide reasonable assurance on matters contained in Part II of Schedule II of 
the  

4. We have audited the financial statements of the Company as of and for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025, on which we issued an unmodified audit opinion vide our reports 
dated May 9, 2025. Our audits of these financial statements were conducted in accordance 

(Converted into LLP w.e.f. 15th 
December 2023) 
Sunil Patodia Tower 
J.B. Nagar, Andheri (East), 
Mumbai  400 099  
  

305, Lodha Supremus, 
Off Mahakali Caves Road, 
Andheri East, 
Mumbai  400 069 
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with the Standards on Auditing as prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered 

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. Our audits were not planned and performed in connection with any 
transactions to identify matters that may be of potential interest to third parties. 

5. We have performed the following procedures: 
a) Obtained Management Report for the year ended March 31, 2025; 

b) Obtained Compliance certificate submitted to the Board of Directors by the officers of the 
Company; 

c) Obtained Cheques in Hand certificate as on March 31, 2025; 

d) Obtained Holding Statement as at March 31, 2025 issued by the  custodian for 
Investments; 

e) Verified the figures which are extracted from the audited books of accounts; 

f) Verified the detailed working through which the figures have been derived and stated in 
the Statement; and 

g) Obtained written representation wherever required. 
 

6. We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or 
Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the ICAI. The Guidance Note 
requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality 
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical 
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements issued by ICAI. 

Opinion 
 
8. In accordance with the information, explanations and representations given to us and to the 

best of our knowledge and belief and based on our examination of the books of account and 
other records maintained by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, we certify that: 

a) We have reviewed the Management Report attached to the financial statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2025, and on the basis of our review, there is no apparent mistake or 
material inconsistency with the financial statements; 

b) The Company has complied with the terms and conditions of registration as per sub section 4 
of section 3 of the Insurance Act, 1938; 

c) We have verified the cheque balances, to the extent considered necessary, and securities 
investments as at March 31, 2025, by actual inspection or on the 

basis of certificates / confirmations received from the Custodian and / or Depository 
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Participants appointed by the Company, as the case may be; 

d) The Company is not a trustee of any trust; and 

e) No part of the assets of the 
contravention of the provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938 relating to the application and 

  
 
Emphasis of Opinion 
 
9. We draw attention to the following notes included in the schedule 16 of the financial 

statements- 
a. Note No. 41 of Schedule 16 to the financial statements, regarding accounting of Co-

Insurance, Re-Insurance (RI) and related Balances Confirmation 
b. Note No. 42 of Schedule 16 to the financial statements, which describes the effect of change 

in impairment policy for investments other than Debt instruments. 
 Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 
 

Other Matter 
 
10. The actuarial valuation of liabilities in respect of Claims Incurred but Not Reported ("IBNR"), 

responsibility of the Company's Appointed Actuary (the "Appointed Actuary"). The  actuarial 
valuation of these liabilities that are estimated using statistical methods, Premium Deficiency 
Reserve (the "PDR"), IBNR and IBNER as at March 31, 2025 have been certified by the 
Appointed Actuary and in his opinion, the assumptions for such valuation are in accordance 
with the guidelines and norms issued by the IRDAI and the Institute of Actuaries of India in 
concurrence with the Authority. We have relied upon the Appointed Actuary's certificate in 
this regard for forming our opinion on the valuation of liabilities for outstanding claims 
reserve and PDR, as contained in the financial Statements.  

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 

S K Patodia & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

S. C. Bapna & Associates 
Chartered Accountants  

 

 
 
 

Restriction on use 

11. This certificate is issued at the request of the Company solely for use of the Company for 
inclusion in the annual accounts in order to comply with the Part II of Schedule II of the 

 and is not intended to be and should not be used for any other 
purpose without our 
other concerned for any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment. Accordingly, 
we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any 
other person to whom this Certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our 
prior consent in writing. 

 
For S C Bapna & Associates For S K Patodia & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 115649W Firm Registration No: 112723W/W100962 
  

Jai Prakash Gupta Ankush Goyal 
Partner Partner 
Membership No: 088903 Membership No: 146017 
UDIN : 25088903BMUHYN5958 UDIN : 25146017BNUHQI5648 

 
  
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 9, 2025 Date: May 9, 2025 

 



Particulars  Schedule
Ref. 

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Sources of Funds

Share Capital 5 & 5A 36,818                        36,818                        

Share application money pending allotment -                              -                              

Reserves and Surplus 6 1,26,285                     1,07,299                     

Fair Value Change Account

-Shareholders' Funds (557)                            149                             

-Policyholders' Funds (1,770)                         472                             

Borrowings 7 15,000                        -                              

Total 1,75,776                     1,44,738                     

Application of Funds

Investments-Shareholders 8 1,26,175                     1,10,822                     

Investments-Policyholders 8A 4,01,183                     3,50,427                     

Loans 9 -                              -                              

Fixed Assets 10 7,230                          5,818                          

Deferred Tax Asset (Net) - (Refer Note 19 of Schedule 16) 3,836                          2,192                          

Current Assets

Cash and Bank Balances 11 2,978                          9,376                          

Advances and Other Assets 12 1,24,695                     86,042                        

Sub-Total (A) 1,27,673                     95,418                        

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) -                              -                              

Current Liabilities 13 3,97,446                     3,38,939                     

Provisions 14 92,875                        81,000                        

Sub-Total (B) 4,90,321                     4,19,939                     

Net Current Assets (C) =  (A - B) (3,62,648)                    (3,24,521)                    

Miscellaneous Expenditure (to the extent not written off or adjusted) 15 -                              -                              

Debit Balance in Profit and Loss Account -                              -                              

Total 1,75,776                     1,44,738                     

Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For S C Bapna & Associates                       For S K Patodia & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants                                   Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 115649W                                 Firm Reg. No.112723W/W100962

  

  

Jai Prakash Gupta                                        Ankush Goyal

Partner                                                            Partner

Membership No. 088903                                Membership No. 146017

Aarti Kamath

Company Secretary

Membership No. FCS 6703

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 09, 2025 Date: May 09, 2025

Chhaya Palrecha                Nilesh Mejari

Independent Director           Chief Financial Officer

DIN No. 06914875               Membership No. 109753

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mahesh Kumar Bajaj          Sharad Mathur

Non-Executive Director         MD & CEO

DIN No. 08080244                 DIN No. 08754740
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Contingent liabilities                                                                                                             Contd.

FORM B-BS

Name of the Insurer: Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Registration No.134 and Date of Registration with the IRDAI November 16, 2007

Balance Sheet as at  31st March, 2025



 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

-                                           -                                           

-                                           -                                           

-                                           -                                           

-                                           -                                           

6,534                                       6,547                                       

-                                           -                                           

4,498                                       5,157                                       

10,473                                     10,473                                     

21,505                                     22,177                                     

Contingent liabilities

Total

Particulars

1. Partly paid-up investments

2. Claims, other than against  policies, not acknowledged as  debts by the company

3. Underwriting commitments  outstanding (in respect of  shares and securities)

4. Guarantees given by or on behalf of the Company

5.Statutory demands/ liabilities in  dispute, not provided for (Refer Note- 1a)

6. Reinsurance obligations to the  extent not provided for in  accounts

7 Others 

(a) Claims lodged by policyholders in court under dispute not provided for

(b) Others (Refer Note-2)

Pending Litigation 
The pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company primarily by customers and proceedings pending with tax authorities. The Company has
reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required. The Company does not expect the outcome of
these proceedings to have a material adverse effect on its financial results as at March 31, 2025.

Note 1:
a) The Company has disputed the demand raised by Income Tax Authorities amounting to 3,169 Lakhs (Previous year 3,169 Lakhs) and the Goods & Service Tax

b) Excludes, payment of 1,004 Lakhs (Previous Year 2,004 Lakhs) under protest pursuant to a GST proceeding on account of alleged ineligible input tax credit
entitlement on certain marketing expenses and GST liability towards the exemption provided for crop related reinsurance premium. However, the Company has been
advised that its tax position on the matters is legally valid and the adopted tax position is legally tenable. Accordingly, the Company has treated the amount paid as

d) Show-cause notices issued by various Government Authorities are not considered as an obligation. When any order or notice is raised by the authorities for which
the Company is in appeal under adjudication, these are disclosed as contingent liability except in cases where the probability of any financial outflow is remote.      

Note 2:
The company is informed of imposing penalty 1,109 Lakhs (previous year 1,109 Lakhs) from Haryana State and penalty of 9,364 Lakhs (previous year 9,364)
from Gujarat State for the alleged delay in settlement of crop claims to the farmers. Crop claims of eligible farmers of the Gujarat State have already been settled in
March 2024, after receipt of premium subsidy from Central and State Governments in March 2024. The writ petition challenging the imposition of penalty by State
Government of Haryana and State Government of Gujarat are sub-judice before respective High Courts. Considering the operational guidelines for PMFBY schemes
and defense raised by the Company in Writs, the chance of penalty succeeding against the company is remote.

c) Excludes demand of 67,892 lakhs raised by Income Tax Authorities for three financial years towards various industry vide issues including disallowance of
expenses such as provision for IBNR, reinsurance premium paid to foreign reinsurance branches, admin fees paid to lead insurers, commission paid to reinsurance
companies, certain marketing expenses, denial of exempt income, etc. The company has filed an appeal at Commissioner appeal level for all three financial years. The
Company has been advised that its tax position on the matters is legally valid and the adopted tax position is legally tenable.



Particulars Year Ended 
March 31, 2025

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

Cash flows from the operating activities:
Premium received from policyholders, including advance receipts 4,97,407                          5,07,811                          
Other receipts -                                   -                                   
Payments to re-insurers, net of commissions and claims (54,500)                            (1,06,619)                         
Payments to the Co-insurers, net of claims recovery 13,118                             (5,541)                              
Payments of claims (2,73,778)                         (2,67,850)                         
Payments of commission and brokerage (79,296)                            (64,586)                            
Payments of other operating expenses (64,446)                            (57,904)                            
Preliminary and pre-operative expenses -                                   -                                   
Deposits, advances and staff loans 64                                    455                                  
Income tax paid (net) (6,991)                              (7,650)                              
Good & Service tax paid (15,664)                            (10,943)                            
Other payments

Expenditure on CSR activities (440)                                 (295)                                 
-                                   

Cash flows before extraordinary items 15,474                             (13,122)                            
Cash flow from extraordinary operations -                                   -                                   
Net cash flow from operating activities 15,474                             (13,122)                            

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets (4,918)                              (3,311)                              
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 25                                    7                                      
Purchases of investments (2,95,044)                         (2,10,443)                         
Loans disbursed -                                   -                                   
Sales of investments 2,39,418                          1,78,121                          
Repayments received -                                   -                                   
Rents / Interests / Dividends received 32,029                             27,464                             
Investments in money market instruments and in liquid mutual funds (net) (7,461)                              13,486                             
Expenses related to investments (1)                                     (1)                                     
Net cash flow from Investing activities (35,952)                            5,323                               

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of share capital -                                   -                                   
Proceeds from borrowing 15,000                             -                                   
Repayments of borrowing -                                   -                                   
Interest / dividends paid (920)                                 (920)                                 
Net cash flow from financing activities 14,080                             (920)                                 

Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents, net -                                   -                                   

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (6,398)                              (8,719)                              
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 9,376                               18,095                             
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2,978                               9,376                               

Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and Bank balances 2,978                               9,376                               
Less: Deposit Accounts not considered as Cash and cash equivalents as defined in AS-3 

-                                   -                                   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,978                               9,376                               

For S C Bapna & Associates                       For S K Patodia & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants                                   Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 115649W                                 Firm Reg. No.112723W/W100962

  

  
Jai Prakash Gupta                                        Ankush Goyal Mahesh Kumar Bajaj          Sharad Mathur
Partner                                                            Partner Non-Executive Director         MD & CEO
Membership No. 088903                                Membership No. 146017 DIN No. 08080244                DIN No. 08754740

Chhaya Palrecha                Nilesh Mejari
Independent Director           Chief Financial Officer
DIN No. 06914875               Membership No. 109753

Aarti Kamath
Company Secretary
Membership No. FCS 6703

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 09, 2025 Date: May 09, 2025

As per our attached report of even date.

Name of the Insurer: Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited
Registration No.134 and Date of Registration with the IRDAI November 16, 2007
Cash Flow Statement (Direct Method) For The Year Ended March 31, 2025 

Refer Schedule 11 for components of cash and bank balances
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements



Particulars Schedule
Ref.

Year Ended 
March 31, 2025

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

1 Operating Profit / (Loss)

(a) Fire Insurance 3,823                                   960                                      

(b) Marine Insurance (484)                                    (210)                                    

(c) Miscellaneous Insurance 19,531                                 23,229                                 

2 Income from Investments

(a) Interest, Dividend and Rent - Gross 7,989                                   6,928                                   

(b) Profit on sale of investments 1,504                                   745                                      

    (c) (Loss) on sale/ redemption of investments (478)                                    (93)                                      

(d) Amortization of Premium / Discount on Investments (250)                                    (298)                                    

3 Other Income

(a) Interest On Income Tax Refund 32                                        339                                      

(b) Foreign Exchange (Gain) / Loss -                                      -                                      

(c) Miscellaneous Income -                                      9                                          

(d) Profit/(Loss) on Sale / Write off of Fixed Assets (Net) 3                                          -                                      

Total (A) 31,670                                 31,609                                 

4 Provisions (Other than taxation)

(a) For diminution in the value of investments - (Refer Note 9 of Schedule 16) (473)                                    (225)                                    

(b) For doubtful debts 5,541                                   5,687                                   

(c) Others

Impairment of Investment Assets - (Refer Note 9 of Schedule 16) (258)                                    206                                      

5 Other Expenses

(a) Expenses other than those related to Insurance Business -                                      -                                      

(b) Bad debts written off -                                      -                                      

(c) Interest on subordinated debt 1,012                                   -                                      

(d) Expenses towards CSR activities 440                                      296                                      

(e) Penalties -                                      -                                      

(f)  Contribution to Policyholders' A/c -                                      -                                      

(i) Towards Excess Expenses of Management1
-                                      -                                      

(ii) Towards remuneration of MD/CEO/WTD/Other KMPs2
116                                      62                                        

(iii) Others -                                      -                                      

(g) Others

(i) Director Sitting fees and Board meeting expenses 155                                      100                                      

(ii) Loss on Sale / Write off of Fixed Assets (Net) -                                      5                                          

(iii) Debenture Issuance Expenses 74                                        74                                        

Total (B) 6,607                                   6,205                                   

6 Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 25,063                                 25,404                                 

7 Provision for Taxation

(a) Current tax 7,721                                   7,905                                   

(b) Deferred tax - (Refer Note 19 of Schedule 16) (1,644)                                 (666)                                    

8 Profit / (Loss) After Tax 18,986                                 18,165                                 

9 Appropriations

(a) Interim dividends paid during the year -                                      -                                      

(b) Final dividend -                                      920                                      

(c) Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 150                                      -                                      

Balance of Profit / (Loss) brought forward from last year 90,537                                 73,292                                 

Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 1,09,373                              90,537                                 

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts 16

Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For S C Bapna & Associates                        For S K Patodia & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants                                   Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 115649W                                 Firm Reg. No.112723W/W100962

  

  

Jai Prakash Gupta                                        Ankush Goyal

Partner                                                            Partner

Membership No. 088903                                Membership No. 146017

Aarti Kamath

Company Secretary

Membership No. FCS 6703

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 09, 2025 Date: May 09, 2025

Chhaya Palrecha               Nilesh Mejari

Independent Director          Chief Financial Officer

DIN No. 06914875              Membership No. 109753

1 In case expenses of management exceeds the limits prescribed by the regulations.

2 In case annual remuneration exceeds the specified limit.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mahesh Kumar Bajaj          Sharad Mathur

Non-Executive Director         MD & CEO

DIN No. 08080244                DIN No. 08754740

FORM B-PL

Registration No.134 and Date of Registration with the IRDAI November 16, 2007

Name of the Insurer: Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2025



Particulars Schedule
Ref.

Year Ended 
March 31, 2025

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

1 Premium earned (Net) 1 2,236                                   4,129                                   

2 Profit / Loss on sale / redemption of Investments 94                                        77                                        

3 Interest, Dividend & Rent - Gross (Note 1) 1,269                                   1,104                                   

4 Other

(a) Other Income

 (i) Stale Cheque write back 2                                          4                                          

 (ii) Miscellaneous income -                                      6                                          

(iii) Foreign Exchange Gain / (Loss) -                                      -                                      

(b) Contribution from the Shareholders' Account

(i) Towards Excess Expenses of Management1 -                                      -                                      

(ii) Towards remuneration of MD/CEO/WTD/Other KMPs2 1                                          1                                          

(iii) Others -                                      -                                      

Total (A) 3,602                                   5,321                                   

5 Claims Incurred (Net) 2 666                                      3,799                                   

6 Commission 3 (1,407)                                 (234)                                    

7 Operating Expenses related to Insurance Business 4 520                                      796                                      

Total (B) (221)                                    4,361                                   

8 Operating Profit / (Loss) C = (A - B) 3,823                                   960                                      

9 Appropriations

Transfer to Shareholders' Account 3,823                                   960                                      

Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve -                                      -                                      

Transfer to Other Reserves -                                      -                                      

Total 3,823                                   960                                      

Year Ended 
March 31, 2025

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

729                                      824                                      

(8)                                        (8)                                        

(23)                                      (35)                                      

-                                      -                                      

-                                      -                                      

-                                      -                                      

571                                      323                                      

1,269                                   1,104                                   

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts 16

Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For S C Bapna & Associates                        For S K Patodia & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants                                   Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 115649W                                 Firm Reg. No.112723W/W100962

  

  

Jai Prakash Gupta                                        Ankush Goyal

Partner                                                            Partner

Membership No. 088903                                Membership No. 146017

Aarti Kamath

Company Secretary

Membership No. FCS 6703

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 09, 2025 Date: May 09, 2025

Independent Director           Chief Financial Officer

DIN No. 06914875               Membership No. 109753

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mahesh Kumar Bajaj         Sharad Mathur

Non-Executive Director         MD & CEO

DIN No. 08080244                DIN No. 08754740

Chhaya Palrecha               Nilesh Mejari

* Term gross implies inclusive of TDS 

1 In case expenses of management exceeds the limits prescribed by the regulations, 

2 In case annual remuneration exceeds the specified limit,

Notes: (a) See notes appended at the end of FORM B-PL

Investment Expenses 

Amortisation of Premium/ Discount on Investments

Amount written off in respect of depreciated investments

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

Provision for diminution in the value of other than actively traded Equities

Interest, Dividend & Rent

Add/Less:-

Investment income from Pool

FORM B-RA

Name of the Insurer: Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Registration No.134 and Date of Registration with the IRDAI November 16, 2007

Revenue Account for Fire Segment for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note - 1



Particulars Schedule
Ref.

Year Ended 
March 31, 2025

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

1 Premium earned (Net) 1 1,461                              516                                 

2 Profit / Loss on sale / redemption of Investments 15                                   6                                     

3 Interest, Dividend & Rent - Gross (Note 1) 111                                 62                                   

4 Other

(a) Other Income

 (i) Stale Cheque write back 1                                     1                                     

 (ii) Miscellaneous income 1                                     1                                     

(iii) Foreign Exchange Gain / (Loss) -                                  -                                  

(b) Contribution from the Shareholders' Account

(i) Towards Excess Expenses of Management1 -                                  -                                  

(ii) Towards remuneration of MD/CEO/WTD/Other KMPs2 1                                     1                                     

(iii) Others -                                  -                                  

Total (A) 1,590                              587                                 

5 Claims Incurred (Net) 2 1,686                              677                                 

6 Commission 3 90                                   (120)                                

7 Operating Expenses related to Insurance Business 4 298                                 240                                 

Total (B) 2,074                              797                                 

8 Operating Profit / (Loss) C = (A - B) (484)                                (210)                                

9 Appropriations

Transfer to Shareholders' Account (484)                                (210)                                

Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve -                                  -                                  

Transfer to Other Reserves -                                  -                                  

Total (C) (484)                                (210)                                

Year Ended 
March 31, 2025

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

116                                 66                                   

(1)                                    (1)                                    

(4)                                    (3)                                    

-                                  -                                  

-                                  -                                  

-                                  -                                  

-                                  -                                  

111                                 62                                   
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Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For S C Bapna & Associates                        For S K Patodia & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants                                   Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 115649W                                 Firm Reg. No.112723W/W100962

  

  

Jai Prakash Gupta                                        Ankush Goyal

Partner                                                            Partner

Membership No. 088903                                Membership No. 146017

Aarti Kamath

Company Secretary

Membership No. FCS 6703

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 09, 2025 Date: May 09, 2025

DIN No. 06914875               Membership No. 109753

Mahesh Kumar Bajaj        Sharad Mathur

Non-Executive Director       MD & CEO

DIN No. 08080244               DIN No. 08754740

Chhaya Palrecha               Nilesh Mejari

Independent Director           Chief Financial Officer

Investment income from Pool

Interest, Dividend & Rent

Add/Less:-

Investment Expenses 

Amortisation of Premium/ Discount on Investments

Amount written off in respect of depreciated investments

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FORM B-RA

Name of the Insurer: Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Registration No.134 and Date of Registration with the IRDAI November 16, 2007

Revenue Account for Marine Segment for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note - 1

1 In case expenses of management exceeds the limits prescribed by the regulations, 

2 In case annual remuneration exceeds the specified limit,

Notes: (a) See notes appended at the end of FORM B-PL

* Term gross implies inclusive of TDS 

Provision for diminution in the value of other than actively traded Equities



Particulars Schedule
Ref.

Year Ended 
March 31, 2025

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

1 Premium earned (Net) 1 2,33,204                         2,16,255                         

2 Profit / Loss on sale / redemption of Investments 3,152                              1,976                              

3 Interest, Dividend & Rent - Gross (Note 1) 23,651                            19,930                            

4 Other

(a) Other Income

 (i) Stale Cheque write back 160                                 163                                 

 (ii) Miscellaneous income 37                                   279                                 

(iii) Foreign Exchange Gain / (Loss) (2)                                    5                                     

(b) Contribution from the Shareholders' Account

(i) Towards Excess Expenses of Management1 -                                  -                                  

(ii) Towards remuneration of MD/CEO/WTD/Other KMPs2 114                                 60                                   

(iii) Others -                                  -                                  

Total (A) 2,60,316                         2,38,668                         

5 Claims Incurred (Net) 2 1,80,425                         1,76,092                         

6 Commission 3 18,851                            2,370                              

7 Operating Expenses related to Insurance Business 4 40,017                            36,859                            

8 Contribution to Solatium Fund/Hit and Run Compensation 1,492                              118                                 

Total (B) 2,40,785                         2,15,439                         

9 Operating Profit / (Loss) C = (A - B) 19,531                            23,229                            

10 Appropriations

Transfer to Shareholders' Account 19,531                            23,229                            

Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve -                                  -                                  

Transfer to Other Reserves -                                  -                                  

Total (C) 19,531                            23,229                            

Year Ended 
March 31, 2025

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

24,552                            21,011                            

(268)                                (191)                                

(770)                                (903)                                

-                                  -                                  

-                                  -                                  

-                                  -                                  

137                                 13                                   

23,651                            19,930                            
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Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For S C Bapna & Associates                        For S K Patodia & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants                                   Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 115649W                                 Firm Reg. No.112723W/W100962

  

  

Jai Prakash Gupta                                        Ankush Goyal

Partner                                                            Partner

Membership No. 088903                                Membership No. 146017

Aarti Kamath

Company Secretary

Membership No. FCS 6703

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 09, 2025 Date: May 09, 2025

DIN No. 06914875              Membership No. 109753

Mahesh Kumar Bajaj        Sharad Mathur

Non-Executive Director       MD & CEO

DIN No. 08080244               DIN No. 08754740

Chhaya Palrecha              Nilesh Mejari

Independent Director          Chief Financial Officer

Investment income from Pool

Interest, Dividend & Rent

Add/Less:-

Investment Expenses 

Amortisation of Premium/ Discount on Investments

Amount written off in respect of depreciated investments

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FORM B-RA

Name of the Insurer: Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Registration No.134 and Date of Registration with the IRDAI November 16, 2007

Revenue Account for Miscellaneous Segment for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note - 1

1 In case expenses of management exceeds the limits prescribed by the regulations, 

2 In case annual remuneration exceeds the specified limit,

Notes: (a) See notes appended at the end of FORM B-PL

* Term gross implies inclusive of TDS 

Provision for diminution in the value of other than actively traded Equities



Particulars Schedule
Ref.

Year Ended 
March 31, 2025

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

1 Premium earned (Net) 1 2,36,901                   2,20,900                   

2 Profit / Loss on sale / redemption of Investments 3,261                        2,059                        

3 Interest, Dividend & Rent - Gross (Note 1) 25,031                      21,096                      

4 Other

(a) Other Income

 (i) Stale Cheque write back 163                           168                           

 (ii) Miscellaneous income 38                             286                           

(iii) Foreign Exchange Gain / (Loss) (2)                             5                               

(b) Contribution from the Shareholders' Account

(i) Towards Excess Expenses of Management1
-                           -                           

(ii) Towards remuneration of MD/CEO/WTD/Other KMPs2
116                           62                             

(iii) Others -                           -                           

Total (A) 2,65,508                   2,44,576                   

5 Claims Incurred (Net) 2 1,82,777                   1,80,568                   

6 Commission 3 17,534                      2,016                        

7 Operating Expenses related to Insurance Business 4 40,835                      37,895                      

8 Premium Deficiency -                           -                           

9 Contribution to Solatium Fund/Hit and Run Compensation 1,492                        118                           

Total (B) 2,42,638                   2,20,597                   

10 Operating Profit / (Loss) C = (A - B) 22,870                      23,979                      

11 Appropriations

Transfer to Shareholders' Account 22,870                      23,979                      

Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve -                           -                           

Transfer to Other Reserves -                           -                           

Total (C) 22,870                      23,979                      

Year Ended 
March 31, 2025

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

25,397                      21,901                      

(277)                         (200)                         

(797)                         (941)                         

-                           -                           

-                           -                           

-                           -                           

708                           336                           

25,031                      21,096                      
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Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For S C Bapna & Associates                        For S K Patodia & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants                                   Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 115649W                                 Firm Reg. No.112723W/W100962

  

  

Jai Prakash Gupta                                        Ankush Goyal

Partner                                                            Partner

Membership No. 088903                                Membership No. 146017

Aarti Kamath

Company Secretary

Membership No. FCS 6703

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 09, 2025 Date: May 09, 2025

DIN No. 06914875               Membership No. 109753

Mahesh Kumar Bajaj         Sharad Mathur

Non-Executive Director        MD & CEO

DIN No. 08080244               DIN No. 08754740

Chhaya Palrecha               Nilesh Mejari

Independent Director           Chief Financial Officer

Investment income from Pool

Interest, Dividend & Rent

Add/Less:-

Investment Expenses 

Amortisation of Premium/ Discount on Investments

Amount written off in respect of depreciated investments

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FORM B-RA

Name of the Insurer: Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Registration No.134 and Date of Registration with the IRDAI November 16, 2007

Revenue Account for the company (total) the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note - 1

1 In case expenses of management exceeds the limits prescribed by the regulations, 

2 In case annual remuneration exceeds the specified limit,

Notes: (a) See notes appended at the end of FORM B-PL

* Term gross implies inclusive of TDS 

Provision for diminution in the value of other than actively traded Equities
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 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

1

40,000               40,000               

2

36,818               36,818               

3

36,818               36,818               

4

36,818               36,818               

-                    -                    

-                    -                    

-                    -                    

-                    -                    

36,818               36,818               

Number of Shares % of Holding Number of Shares % of Holding

Promoters: 

Indian 24,07,38,637           65.4% 24,07,38,637                 65.4%

Foreign 12,74,43,183           34.6% 12,74,43,183                 34.6%

Investors1

Indian -                               -                           -                                 -                                 

Foreign -                               -                           -                                 -                                 

Indian -                               -                           -                                 -                                 

Foreign -                               -                           -                                 -                                 

36,81,81,820           100.0% 36,81,81,820                 100.0%

Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Schedules Forming Part of Financial Statements

Share Capital

Note: The compnay doesn't have any holding company.

Less: Calls unpaid

Add: Equity Shares forfeited (Amount originally paid up)

Less: Par Value of Equity Shares bought back

Less: Preliminary Expenses

368,181,820 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

Subscribed Capital

368,181,820 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

Called-up Capital

368,181,820 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

SCHEDULE - 5

Particulars

Authorised Capital

400,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

Issued Capital

           Expenses including commission or brokerage on underwriting or subscription of shares

TOTAL

As at March 31, 2024As at March 31, 2025

Others2

TOTAL

Pattern on Shareholding

[As certified by the Management]

Shareholder



Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

1 Capital Reserve -                                -                                

2 Capital Redemption Reserve -                                -                                

3 Share Premium 16,762                           16,762                           

4 Revaluation Reserve -                                -                                

5 General Reserves -                                -                                

Less : Amount utilized for Buy-back -                                -                                

Less : Amount utilized for issue of Bonus shares -                                -                                

6 Catastrophe Reserve -                                -                                

7 Other Reserves

Debenture Redemption Reserve -                                

Opening Balance -                                -                                

Add: Additions During the Year 150                               -                                

Less: Deductions During the Year -                                -                                

Closing Balance 150                               -                                

8 Balance of Profit in Profit and Loss Account

Opening Balance 90,537                               73,292                               

Add: Additions from Profit & Loss Account 18,986                               18,165                               

Less: Final dividend -                                    920                                    

Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 150                                    -                                    

Closing Balance 1,09,373                            90,537                               

TOTAL 1,26,285                            1,07,299                            

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Opening Balance of Assigned capital -                                -                                

Add: Addition during the year -                                -                                

Closing Balance of Assigned Capital* -                                -                                

TOTAL -                                -                                

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

1 Debentures / Bonds 15,000                           -                                

2 Banks -                                -                                

3 Financial Institutions -                                -                                

4 Others -                                -                                

TOTAL 15,000                               -                                

SI No. Source / instrument Amount borrowed Amount of security Nature of security

1 NIL -                                    -                                    -                           

Schedules Forming Part of Financial Statements

Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Borrowings 

SCHEDULE - 6A

SCHEDULE - 7

SCHEDULE - 6

Reserves And Surplus

Disclosure For Secured Borrowings (Refer Note a)

Head Office Account Schedule



 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
1 Government securities and Government 

guaranteed bonds including Treasury Bills
40,153                      35,508                      1,27,670                   1,12,278                   1,67,823                   1,47,786                   

2 Other Approved Securities -                            638                           -                            2,019                        -                            2,657                        

3 Other Investments:

(a)  Shares

(aa)  Equity 359                           360                           1,141                        1,140                        1,500                        1,500                        

(bb) Preference -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

(b)  Mutual Funds -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

(c)  Derivative Instruments -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

(d)  Debentures / Bonds 20,389                      22,999                      64,828                      72,723                      85,217                      95,722                      

(e)  Other Securities -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

(f)   Subsidiaries -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

(g)  Investment Properties - Real Estate -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

4 Investments in Infrastructure and Housing 34,833                      29,588                      1,10,755                   93,558                      1,45,588                   1,23,146                   

5 Other than Approved Investments

(a) Investments in Alternate Investment Fund 758                           534                           2,410                        1,687                        3,168                        2,221                        
(b) Other Securities 96                             -                            304                           -                            400                           -                            
TOTAL 96,588                      89,627                      3,07,108                   2,83,405                   4,03,696                   3,73,032                   

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

1 Government securities and Government 
guaranteed bonds including Treasury Bills

3,351                        2,885                        10,652                      9,122                        14,003                      12,007                      

2 Other Approved Securities 5,396                        3,813                        17,153                      12,058                      22,549                      15,871                      

3 Other Investments:

(a)  Shares

(aa)  Equity 6,128                        3,785                        19,486                      11,967                      25,614                      15,752                      

(bb) Preference -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

(b)  Mutual Funds 469                           145                           1,492                        459                           1,961                        604                           

(c)  Derivative Instruments -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

(d)  Debentures / Bonds 6,995                        4,924                        22,242                      15,571                      29,237                      20,495                      

(e)  Other Securities (Deposit with Bank) 2,105                        829                           6,695                        2,621                        8,800                        3,450                        

(f)   Subsidiaries -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

(g)  Investment Properties - Real Estate -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

4 Investments in Infrastructure and Housing 2,333                        3,957                        7,419                        12,514                      9,752                        16,471                      

5 Other than Approved Investments

(a) Shares : Equity 2,810                        818                           8,936                        2,587                        11,746                      3,405                        
Less; Provision for diminution in value of  
Investments

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

(b) Mutual Fund -                            39                             -                            123                           -                            162                           
(C)  Debentures/Bonds -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
Total 29,587                      21,195                      94,075                      67,022                      1,23,662                   88,217                      

GRAND TOTAL 1,26,175                   1,10,822                   4,01,183                   3,50,427                   5,27,358                   4,61,249                   

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Long Term Investments:

Book Value 95,375                      89,093                      3,03,254                   2,81,717                   3,98,629                   3,70,810                   
Market Value 96,112                      87,941                      3,05,596                   2,78,074                   4,01,708                   3,66,015                   

Short Term Investments:

Book Value 20,179                      16,409                      64,161                      51,885                      84,340                      68,294                      
Market Value 20,176                      16,356                      64,153                      51,718                      84,329                      68,074                      

 Policyholders 

Particulars  SCH-8  SCH-8A 

4. Unsettled Investment receivables pertaining to security issued by Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Services Limited (IL&FS) on maturity has been classified to Schedule 12 Advances &

5 Long Term Equity includes the Perpetual Bond.

Notes:

3. Short Term Other approved securties includes TREPS amounting to 7,540 Lakhs (previous year 13,395 Lakhs), Certificate of Deposit 12,369 Lakhs (previous year 2,476 Lakhs) & State

Aggregate value of Investments other than Listed Equity Securities and Derivative Instruments 
 Total 

Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Schedules Forming Part of Financial Statements

SCHEDULE - 8 & 8A

Particulars

 Shareholders 

 SCH-8  SCH-8A 

 Policyholders 

 Total 
Investments Schedule

 Shareholders 



Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

1 SECURITY-WISE CLASSIFICATION

Secured

(a)  On mortgage of property

(aa)  In India

(bb) Outside India

(b)  On Shares, Bonds, Government Securities

(c)  Others

Unsecured

Total -                                    -                                    

2 BORROWER-WISE CLASSIFICATION

(a) Central and State Governments

(b) Banks and Financial Institutions

(c ) Subsidiaries

(d) Industrial Undertakings

(e) Others

-                                    -                                    

3 PERFORMANCE-WISE CLASSIFICATION

(a)  Loans classified as standard

(aa)  In India

(bb) Outside India

(b)  Non-performing loans less provisions

(aa)  In India

(bb) Outside India

Total -                                    -                                    

4 MATURITY-WISE CLASSIFICATION

(a)  Short Term

(b)  Long Term

Total -                                    -                                    

Non-Performing Loans  Loan Amount   Provision  

Sub-standard -                                    -                                    

Doubtful -                                    -                                    

Loss -                                    -                                    

Total -                                    -                                    

Provisions against Non-performing Loans

SCHEDULE - 9

Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Schedules Forming Part of Financial Statements

Loans
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Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

1 Cash (including cheques, drafts and stamps)* -                         2                            

2 Bank Balances

(a) Deposit Accounts

(aa) Short-term (due within 12 months) 782                        1,224                     

(bb) Others 1                            -                         

(b) Current Accounts 2,195                     8,150                     

(c) Others -                         -                         

3 Money at Call and Short Notice -                         -                         

(a) With Banks -                         -                         

(b) With other Institutions -                         -                         

4 Others -                         -                         

Total 2,978                         9,376                         

Balances with non-scheduled banks included in 2 and 3 above                            -                              -   

CASH & BANK BALANCES

In India 2,978                         9,376                         

Outside India -                             -                             

SCHEDULE - 11

Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Schedules Forming Part of Financial Statements

Cash And Bank Balances



Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

ADVANCES

1 Reserve deposits with ceding companies -                         -                         

2 Application money for investments 500                        -                         

3 Prepayments 1,737                     1,116                     

4 Advances to Directors / Officers -                         -                         

5 Advance tax paid and taxes deducted at source (Net of provision for taxation) 3,238                     2,882                     

6 Goods & Service tax credit 24,772                   12,901                   

7 Others

Advance to Employees against expenses 10                          15                          

Advance to Others 63                          58                          

Surplus in Gratuity fund -                         -                         

Surplus in Leave enchashment fund 77                          39                          

Total (A) 30,397                       17,011                       

OTHER ASSETS
1 Income accrued on investments 12,750                   10,685                   
2 Outstanding Premiums 40,744                   25,858                   

Less : Provisions for doubtful (466)                       -                         

3 485                        1,224                     

Less : Provisions for doubtful (110)                       -                         

4 Foreign Agencies Balances -                         -                         

5 Due from other entities carrying on insurance business (including reinsurers) 28,588                   24,169                   

Less:Provision for dobtful debts (10,637)                  (5,687)                    

6 Due from subsidiaries / holding company -                         -                         

7 Investments held for Unclaimed Amount of Policyholders 2,871                     1,612                     

8 Interest on investments held for Unclaimed Amount of Policyholders 461                        329                        

9 Others

Deposits for Office Premises 922                        549                        

Other Deposits 2,347                     2,765                     

Receivable from Terrorism Pool 6,917                     5,799                     

Receivable from Nuclear Pool 822                        623                        

Receivable from Marine Cargo Excluded territories Pool 19                          16                          

Contracts for Sales - Investment 8,567                     996                        

Unsettled Investment Receivables 3,747                     4,221                     

Provision for diminution in value of investments - (Refer Note 9 of Schedule 16) (3,747)                    (4,221)                    

Other Receivables 18                          93                          

10 Current Account of Head Office* -                         -                         

Total (B) 94,298                       69,031                       

Total (A)+(B) 1,24,695                    86,042                       

SCHEDULE - 12

Advances And Other Assets

Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Schedules Forming Part of Financial Statements



Particular  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

1 6,636                          7,752                          

2 Balances due to other insurance companies (including reinsurers) 1,01,238                     70,726                        

3 Deposits held on re-insurance ceded -                              -                              

4 Premiums received in advance

(a) For Long term policies (1)
35,002                        30,044                        

b) for Other Policies 9,558                          6,120                          

5 Unallocated Premium 5,243                          8,553                          

6 Sundry Creditors 7,149                          7,035                          

7 Due to subsidiaries / holding company -                              -                              

8 Claims Outstanding 2,13,390                     2,03,108                     

9 Due to Officers / Directors -                              -                              

10 Unclaimed amount of Policyholders - (Refer note 22 & 23 of Schedule 16) 2,811                          1,511                          

11 Income accrued on Unclaimed amounts - (Refer note 22 & 23 of Schedule 16) 461                             329                             

12 Interest payable on debentures/bonds 1,012                          -                              

13 Goods and Service tax Liabilities 496                             413                             

14 Others

Due to Solatium Fund/Hit and Run Compensation 898                             523                             

Due to Environment Relief Fund 1                                 -                              

Due to Statutory Authorities 1,473                          1,102                          

Book Overdraft 311                             27                               

Contracts for Purchases - Investment 11,767                        1,696                          

15 Current Account of Head Office* -                              -                              

TOTAL 3,97,446                     3,38,939                     

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

1,840                          1,077                          

2,265                          1,725                          

-                              -                              

224                             162                             

1,017                          1,109                          

40                               15                               

3,272                          1,840                          

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

1 Reserve for unearned premium reserve 91,900                        79,246                        

2 Reserve for Premium Deficiency -                              -                              

3 For taxation (less advance tax paid and taxes deducted at source) 968                             816                             

4 For Employee Benefits -                              -                              

5 Others

Proposed dividends -                              920                             

Others - Retirement Benefits

Leave Encashment -                              -                              

Gratuity 7                                 18                               

Total 92,875                        81,000                        

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

1 Discount Allowed on issue of shares / debentures -                              -                              

2 Others -                              -                              

Total -                              -                              

Details of unclaimed amounts and Investment Income thereon 

Particulars

Opening Balance

Add: Amount transferred to unclaimed amount

 Add: Cheques issued out of the unclaimed amount but not encashed by the policyholders (To be included only when 
the cheques are stale) 

 Add: Investment Income 

 Less: Amount paid during the year  

 Less: Transferred to SCWF 

 Closing Balance of Unclaimed Amount 

Miscellaneous Expenditure (To the extent not written off or adjusted) 

SCHEDULE - 13

SCHEDULE - 14

SCHEDULE - 15

Note :

1. Long term policies are policies with more than one year tenure

2. Details of unclaimed amounts and Investment Income to be submitted as below

Provisions

Current Liabilities

Universal Sompo General Insurance Company Limited

Schedules Forming Part of Financial Statements



Schedule-16 
 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year 
ended                           March 31, 2025 

 
a. Background 
 

incorporated on 
January 5th, 2007 and received Certificate of Registration from Insurance Regulatory and 
Development Authority of India 
business and company holds a valid certificate of registration. 
 
The Shareholders of the Company are Indian Bank (28.52%), Indian Overseas Bank (18.06%), 
Karnataka Bank Ltd. (6.00%), Dabur Investment Corporation (12.81%) and Sompo Japan 
Insurance Inc. (34.61%). 

 

b. Significant Accounting Policies 
 

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
 

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention 
unless otherwise specifically stated, on the accrual basis of accounting, and comply with the 
applicable accounting standards referred to in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and companies (Accounting Standards) 
amendment rule 2016 to the extent applicable and in accordance with the provisions of the 
Insurance Act,1938, Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015, Insurance Regulatory and 
Development Authority Act,1999, the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India 
(IRDAI) (Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024 

Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent applicable) in the manner so required and current practices 
prevailing within the insurance industry in India. Accounting policies applied have been consistent 
with previous year except where different treatment is required as per new pronouncements made 
by the regulatory authorities. The management evaluates, all recently issued or revised 
accounting pronouncements, on an ongoing basis. The financial statements are presented in 
Indian rupees which are rounded off to the nearest lakhs. 

 
2.2 Use of estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities as of the balance sheet date, revenue and expenses for the 
year ended and disclosure of contingent                                   liabilities as of the balance sheet date. The estimates 
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial 
evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as on the date                      of the financial statements. 
Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions. Any revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized prospectively in current reporting year and future years, as applicable. 

 
 

  



 
2.3 Revenue Recognition: 
 

 Premium Income 
 
Other than Long Term Products 

Premium including re-insurance accepted (net of Goods and Services Tax) is recognized as 
income over the period of risk (1/365 method), after adjusting for unearned premium (unexpired 
risk). In respect of policies issued to Government and semi-Government bodies, the risk may be 
covered on such policies on suitable undertaking by the proposer to pay premium within the time 
stipulated in the Insurance Rules, 1939. 
 
Long Term Products 

As per the IRDAI (Actuarial, Finance & Investment Function of Insurers) Regulation, 2024 and 
Master Circular on Actuarial, Finance and Investment Function of Insurers dated May 17, 2024, 
Premium for a Long-Term policy if collected at the time of sale of the policy, for the entire Policy 
Duration or for any duration exceeding 12 months, shall be recognized on a yearly basis.  
 
In other words, the Gross Written Premium reported for any Financial Year shall be the total Gross 
Written Premium due for the Long-

 
 

Premium on direct business is recorded over a period of risk at the time of issuance of 
policies/endorsements. Any subsequent revision to premium is recognized over the remaining 
period of risk or contract period. Adjustments to premium income arising on cancellation of 
policies are recognized in the year in which the cancellation is affected. 
 
Crop and Weather Insurance 

In respect of Government Schemes being implemented for crop and weather insurance, premium 
is recognized (including share of Central Government and respective State Government) upon 
remittance of farmer's share received from the Nodal Banks/Service Centers (out of such premium 
collected by them), which  is subject to acceptance of proposal/ declaration by the Company. 
Adjustments to premium income for correction is recognized in the period in which the information 
is confirmed by the concerned Government/nodal agency.  
 
Re-insurance Accepted  

Reinsurance accepted are accounted for on the basis of reinsurance slips/ last available 
statement of accounts. 
 

2.4 Re-insurance premium ceded 
 
Insurance Premium on ceding of the risk is recognized in the period in which the risk commences 
in accordance with reinsurance arrangements with the re-insurers. Any subsequent revision to 
premium ceded is recognized in the period of such revision. Adjustment to reinsurance premium 
arising on cancellation of policies is recognized in the period in which they are cancelled. Re-
insurance premium ceded on unearned premium is carried forward to the period of risk and is set 
off against related unearned premium. 
Premium on excess of loss reinsurance cover is accounted as per the terms of the reinsurance 
arrangements. 

  



Commission Income from Reinsurance ceded 
 
Commission on reinsurance ceded is recognized as income on ceding of reinsurance premium in 
accordance with                 treaty arrangements with Reinsurer. 
 
Profit commission under reinsurance treaties, wherever applicable, is recognized as income in the 
year of final determination of profits as confirmed by reinsurers and combined with commission on 
reinsurance ceded. 

 
Sliding scale commission under reinsurance treaties, wherever applicable, is recognized as 
income as per the  reinsurance treaty conditions as confirmed by reinsurers and combined with 
commission on reinsurance ceded. 

 
2.5 Premium received in advance 
 

This represents premium received during the year, where the contract period and risk commences 
subsequent to the balance sheet date. Premium received in advance also includes premium 
pertaining to subsequent periods in case of long-term products in accordance with the IRDAI 
(Actuarial, Finance & Investment Function of Insurers) Regulation, 2024 and Master Circular on 
Actuarial, Finance and Investment Function of Insurers dated May 17, 2024. 

 

2.6 Reserves for Unexpired Risk 
 

Reserve for unexpired risk is recognized net of reinsurance ceded and represents that part of the 
premium written, that is attributable to and allocated to succeeding accounting periods for risks to 
be borne by the Company. It is calculated on a daily pro-rata basis (1/365th 

method) on the 
unexpired period of the respective policies, for all lines except for Marine Hull. In case of Marine 
Hull, reserves shall be computed as 100% of net written premium during the preceding twelve 
months 
 

2.7 Acquisition costs 
 

Acquisition costs are those costs that vary with, and are primarily related to the acquisition of new 
and renewal                            of insurance contracts viz. commission, policy issue expenses, etc. These costs are 
expensed in the period in               which they are incurred. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the IRDAI (Expenses of Management, including 
Commission, of Insurers ) Regulations 2024 and subsequent amendments, the Expenses of 
Management shall include commission to the insurance agents, intermediaries or insurance 
intermediaries and expenses on reinsurance inward etc. The acquisition costs are dealt under the 
said Regulations. 
 

2.8 Premium deficiency 
 

Premium deficiency is recognized at Company level when the sum of expected claim costs and 
related expenses and maintenance costs (related to claims handling) on the unexpired period of 
the in-force policies              exceed the related reserve for unexpired risks. The Company considers 
maintenance cost as relevant cost incurred for ensuring claims handling operations.  
 
The Premium deficiency is calculated and duly certified by the Appointed Actuary as per para 
2(i)(b) of part IV Schedule I of Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India 
(Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024.  
 

  



2.9 Claims 
 

Claims incurred comprise claims paid, estimated liability for outstanding claims made following a 
loss occurrence reported and estimated liability for claims Incurred B
claims Incurred But 
claim settlement costs such as survey fee, legal fee, and other directly attributable costs. 
  
Claims (net of amounts receivable from re-insurers/co-insurers) are recognized on the date of 
intimation based on estimates from surveyors/insured in the respective revenue accounts. The 
reserves also include the amounts payable towards surveyors, investigators, lawyers etc. fee. 
The related amounts recoverable from reinsurer/co-insurer are recorded simultaneously along 
with claims. Claims Paid (net of recoveries and salvage refund by the insured and including 
interest paid towards claims) is recorded when approved for payment.   

  
Estimated liability for outstanding claims at balance sheet date is recorded in the respective 
revenue accounts, net of claims recoverable from / payable to re-insurers / co-insurers and 
salvage to the extent there is certainty of realization.  
  
Estimated liability for outstanding claims is determined by management on the basis of ultimate 
amounts likely to be paid on each claim based on past experience. These estimates are 
progressively revalidated on availability of further information. 

  
IBNR reserves are provisions for claims that may have been incurred prior to the end of current 
accounting period but have not been reported or claimed. The IBNR provision also includes 
provision, for the claims that have been incurred but not enough reported (IBNER) and also 
towards the claims which have been closed in the past and may get reopened in future. The 
provision for IBNR and IBNER is based on actuarial estimate duly certified by the Appointed 
Actuary of the company. The actuarial estimate is derived in accordance with the relevant IRDAI 
regulations and the APS 21 issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India. 

 
 
2.10 Investments 

 
Investment are made and accounted for in accordance with the Insurance Act, 1938 as amended 
by Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015, IRDAI (Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions 
of Insurers) Regulations, 2024, as amended and various other circulars/ notifications issued by 
the IRDAI in this context from time to time.  
 
Investments are recorded at cost on trade date and includes brokerage, transfer charges, stamps 
etc., if any, and excludes interest accrued up to the date of purchase. 

 
Classification 
 
Investments maturing within twelve months from the Balance Sheet date and investments made 
with the specific intention to dispose-off within twelve months are classified as  

. 
 

Investments other than  term  are classified as  term  
 
Pursuant to IRDAI circular no. IRDAI/ACTL/CIR/MISC/80/05/2024 dated May 17, 2024, the 
investment assets have been bifurcated on notional basis between  and 

 based on  funds and  funds and disclosed accordingly 
in schedule 8 and 8A respectively. 

  



Valuation 
 

Debt Securities 
 
All debt securities including government securities are considered as  to  and 
accordingly stated at historical cost adjusted for amortization of premium or accretion of discount 
on a straight-line basis over the  holding / maturity period. The realized gain or loss on the 
securities is the differences between sale                      consideration and the amortized cost in the books 
of the company as on the date of sale determined on  cost  

Equities 
 
In accordance with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Actuarial, Finance and 
Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024, Schedule II Part II related to procedure to 
determine value of Investment, Listed equity securities instruments that are traded in active 
markets shall be measured at fair value as at the balance sheet date. Measurement for the 
purpose of calculation of fair value shall be the last quoted closing price on National Stock 
Exchange (NSE). However, in case of any stock not being listed in NSE, the insurer may value 
the Equity based on the last quoted closing price in Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).  
 
Unrealised gains/losses arising due to changes in the fair value of listed equity shares shall be 
taken to equity under the head "Fair Value Change Account". The "Profit on sale of investments" 
or "Loss on sale of investments", as the case may be, shall include accumulated changes in the 
fair value previously recognised in equity under the heading Fair Value Change Account in 
respect of a particular security and being recycled to Profit and Loss Account on actual sale of 
that listed security. 

 

Mutual Fund 
 
Investment in Mutual Funds units is stated at closing Net Asset Value (NAV) at the time of 
valuation at Balance Sheet date. Unrealized gains/losses arising due to changes in the fair value 

available for distribution. 

Alternate Investment Fund 
 
Investment in Alternate Investment Funds (AIF) is stated at Net Asset Value (NAV) available at 
the time of valuation at Balance Sheet date. Unrealized gains/losses arising due to changes in 

under Balance Sheet which is not available for distribution. 
 

 
 
Units of REITs and InvITs are valued at Fair Value, being last quoted closing price (should not 
be older than 30 days) on the National Stock Exchange or in case these are not listed on National 
Stock Exchange, then based on last quoted closing price on the Bombay Stock Exchange. Where 
price is not quoted in the last 30 days, the Units are valued as per the latest NAV (not more than 
6 months old) of the Units published by the trust. 

Bank Deposits 
 

historical cost. 
 



Investment Property 
  
 The Company does not have any investment in property. 
 

Impairment of Investments 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Income earned on Investments 
 
Interest income on investments is recognized on accrual basis and in accordance with the 
guidelines for prudential norms for income recognition, asset classification and provisioning 
issued by IRDAI. Accretion of discount or amortization of premium relating to debt securities is 
recognized over the holding / maturity period  on a Straight-line basis. 
 
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established. 
 
The Net Realized gain or loss on debt securities, which is the difference between the sale 
consideration and the carrying value in the books of the company, is recognized on the trade 
date. In determining the realized gain                    

treasury bills, Commercial paper, Corporate deposit and TREPS is recognised as income in the 
revenue accounts or the profit and loss account, as the case may be, over the remaining term of 
these instruments on a Straight-line basis. Further, in case of listed equity shares, mutual fund 
and Alternate Investment Fund (AIF) the profit or loss on sale also includes the accumulated 
changes in the fair value previously recognized in the fair value change account. 
 
Sale consideration for the purpose of realized gain/loss is net of brokerage and taxes, if any, and 
excludes interest received on sale. 

  



2.11 Fixed Assets, Intangibles, Impairment and Depreciation 
 

Fixed Assets and Depreciation 
 
Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment of assets (if any). 
Cost includes the purchase price and any other costs directly attributable to bring the assets to 
its working condition for its intended use. 
 
Depreciation on assets purchased / disposed-off during the year is provided on pro rata basis 
with reference to the month of additions / deductions.     

 0.0 Lakhs) are fully 
depreciated/amortized in the year in which they are acquired. 

 
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line method using the rates based on the 
economic useful life of assets as estimated by the management/limits specified in Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013 as below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The management estimate of the useful life of Information Technology Equipment (Others  
Printer, Scanner, Hard Disk, etc) and Laptop / Desktop / Monitor are more than that prescribed in 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The management estimate of the useful life of 
Information Technology Equipment (Servers, UPS and Networks Devices) and Vehicles are less 
than that prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.This is based on the consistent 
practices followed, past experience and is duly supported by technical advice/Guidelines. 

 
Capital Work In progress 
 
Capital works in progress includes assets not ready for the intended use and are carried at cost, 
comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses and advances paid for purchase of fixed 
assets. 
 

  

Nature of Asset 

     Management 
Estimate of 
Useful Life  
(In Years) 

Useful life as per the 
limits prescribed in 
Schedule II of the 

Companies Act, 2013 
(in Years) 

Furniture and Fittings 10 10 

Information Technology Equipment  
Servers, UPS and Networks Devices 

5 6 

Information Technology Equipment  Others 
 Printer, Scanner, Hard Disk, etc 

5 3 

Laptop / Desktop / Monitor 4 3 

IPAD / Tablet 3 3 

Office Equipment 5 5 

Vehicles 4 8 

Leasehold Improvement 
Lower of Lock-in 
period / Lease 

period 
Lease Period 



Intangibles Assets 
 
Intangible assets comprising computer software are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. 
Computer software including improvements are amortised over a period of 3 years, being the 

 such intangibles assets. 
 

Impairment of assets 
 
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that any asset 
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the carrying value of such assets is reduced to its 
recoverable amount                 and the impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss account. If at the 
balance sheet date there is any indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer 
exists, then such loss is reversed, and the asset is restated to that extent. 
 

 
2.12 Operating Leases 

 
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the leased item, are classified as operating lease. Payments made towards assets/premises 
taken on operating lease are recognized as an expense in the revenue account(s) and profit and 
loss account over the lease term on straight-line basis. Initial direct costs incurred specifically for 
an operating lease are charged to the revenue account(s) and profit and loss account. 

 
 
2.13 Employee Benefits 

 
(a) Short Term Employee Benefits 

 
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 
short-term employee benefits such as salaries, bonuses, short term compensated absences and 
other non- monetary benefits are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the 
related service. All short-term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis. 

 
 

(b) Long Term employee Benefits  

 Provident Fund (PF) 

This is a defined contribution scheme and contributions payable to the Regional Provident Fund 
Authority is provided on the basis of specified percentage of salary and is charged to revenue 
account(s) and profit                                and loss account. 

charged to the revenue account(s) and profit and loss account, in the year the contributions are 
made. 

 
National Pension Scheme (NPS) 
 
This is a defined contribution scheme and contributions towards National Pension Scheme are 
payable to the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority is provided on the basis of 
specified percentage of basic salary payable to eligible employee. The contributions paid by the 
company as its share in NPS, if any are charged to revenue account(s) and profit and loss 
account. 
 

  



Gratuity 
 
Gratuity, which is a defined benefit scheme is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation 
(Projected Unit  Credit method) including actuarial gains / losses at balance sheet date and is 
recognized accordingly in the revenue account(s) and profit and loss account. 
 
Leave Encashment 
 
Leave Encashment, which is a defined benefit scheme is provided on the basis of actuarial 
valuation (Projected Unit Credit method) including actuarial gains / losses at balance sheet date 
and is recognized                                               accordingly in the revenue account(s) and profit and loss account. 

 
 

2.14 Foreign Currency Transactions 
 

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on 
the date of                         the transaction. 
 
Foreign exchange denominated current assets and liabilities are restated at the rates prevalent at 
the date of               the balance sheet. The exchange gains / losses on account of settlement or otherwise 
on re-statement at reporting date are recognized in the revenue accounts or profit and loss 
account, as applicable. 

 

2.15 Allocation of Investment Income 
 

Investment income is allocated between revenue account(s) and profit and loss account on 
 fund and  fund in accordance with Insurance Regulatory and 

Development Authority of India (IRDAI) (Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) 
Regulations, 2024. 
 
Further, investment income across segments within the revenue account(s) is allocated on the 
basis of the ratio of the average technical reserves of  funds. 

 

2.16 Allocation of Expenses 
 

Pursuant to Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (Expenses of 
Management, including Commission, of Insurers ) Regulations 2024 , the Company has followed 
the Board approved policy for allocating the operating expenses relating to insurance business to 
specific classes of business on the following basis: 

 
i. Expenses that are directly identifiable to a business class are allocated to such class on actual 

basis. 
ii. Other expenses, that are not directly attributable to a business class are broadly allocated on 

the basis of net written premium in each such business class; and 
iii. Depreciation expenditure is allocated on the assessment that the use of the assets is 

proportionate                           to net written premium of the respective segments. 
 

Above expenses have been fully recognized in the revenue accounts as an expense to the extent 
allowable under Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (Expenses of 
Management, including Commission, of Insurers ) Regulations 2024 and the excess amount if 
any, is charged to  fund. 

  



2.17 Contribution to Terrorism Pool 
 

The Company in accordance with the requirements of IRDAI has participated in contributing to 
the Terrorism                      Pool. This pool is managed by General Insurance Corporation of India (GIC). 
Amounts collected as terrorism                  
the terrorism Pool, subject to the condition and an overall limit of Rs 20 billion. 
 
In accordance with the terms of the agreement, GIC retro-cedes to the Company the terrorism 
premium to the extent 
accepted. Such reinsurance accepted is recorded based on the statement received from GIC. 
Accordingly, reinsurance accepted, on account of the terrorism pool is recorded only up to 
December 31, 2024 (previous year: December 31, 2023) as per the last statement received and 
50% of the amount is appropriated and carried forward to the subsequent accounting period as 
Unexpired risk reserve. 
 
Investment income arising from pool accounts is allocated directly to respective Revenue 
Accounts. 

 
2.18 India Nuclear Insurance Pool (INIP) 

 
In view of passage of Civil Liability for Nuclear Damage Act, 2010, GIC Re as Indian Reinsurer 
initiated the formation of the India Nuclear Insurance Pool (INIP) along with other domestic non-
life insurance companies by pooling the capacity to provide insurance covers for the nuclear risks. 
INIP is an unregistered reinsurance                              arrangement among its members i.e., capacity providers 
without any legal entity. GIC Re and 11 non-life insurance companies are founder members with 
their collective capacity of  15 billion. GIC re is also appointed as the pool manager of the INIP. 
The business underwritten by the INIP will be retroceded to all the member companies including 
GIC Re in proportion of their capacity collated. Out of the total capacity of  15 billion of the INIP, 
the capacity provided by the Company is  0.10 billion and 50% of the amount is carried forward 
to the subsequent accounting period as unexpired risk reserve appropriately. The Company has 
recorded its share of the premium retrocession, commission, and interest income upto December 
31, 2024 as per the latest available statements. 
 
 

2.19 Marine Cargo Pool for Excluded Territories  Russia, Ukraine, Belarus 
 
The Company, together with other insurance companies, has participated in the Marine Cargo 
Pool for Excluded Territories  
on or after June 1, 2022. This pool is managed by the General Insurance Corporation of India 

MCPET Agreement, are ceded at 96% to the MCPET Pool, after utilising the obligatory cession. 
In accordance with the terms of the Agreement, GIC retrocedes, to the Company, retrocession 

accepted. Such reinsurance accepted is recorded based on quarterly statements received from 
the GIC. The reinsurance accepted on account of MCPET pool has been recorded in accordance 
with the last statement received from GIC. The Company has ensured that it has created liability, 
to the extent of premium retroceded to the Company, through reserve for unexpired risks 

  



2.19 Contribution to Solatium Fund  
 

In accordance with the requirements of IRDAI circular dated March 18th, 2003 and based on 
recommendations made at the general Insurance council meeting and as per the New India 
Assurance Circular HO/MTD/Solatium fund/2010/482 dated July 26th, 2010, the company has 
provided 0.10% of the gross written premium on all third-party motor policies towards contribution 
to the solatium fund. 

 

Funds to cater the fund requirement for public welfare activities related to victims of road accident. 
MVA Trust was incorporated to manage two accounts   
(i) Account for Insured Vehicles; and  
(ii) Hit and Run Compensation Account.  
The Secretary General, GI Council is a member of the MVA Trust and required to assist in proper 
collection and dispensation of funds as per the MVA Fund Rules. The funds so collected are 
further utilized for public welfare with the objective of (i) payment of compensation; or (ii) offering 
cashless treatment to victims of road accidents. The member general insurance companies are 
required to mandatorily contribute an earmarked amount to the respective MVA Fund Accounts. 
Erstwhile Solatium Fund is now merged with Hit and Run Compensation Fund. 
The Council at the 117th Meeting had agreed to contribute 0.1% of the Motor TP Premium for the 
MV Accident Fund  Insured Vehicles as part of the golden hour treatment for accident victims. 
In the 119th GI council meeting, it was agreed to revise the contribution from general insurance 
companies in the Hit & Run Compensation Account to 0.2% from 0.1% (in erstwhile solatium fund) 
of the motor third party premium collected  

 
2.20 Contribution to Environment Relief Fund 

 
In accordance with the notification no G.S.R 768(E), issued by the Ministry of Environment and 
Forests, dated November 4th, 2008, the Company provides for contribution to the Environment 
Relief Fund established by the Central Government, an amount equal to the premium received in 
relation to public Liability policies issued                  by the company, as per the rules specified by Public 
Liability Insurance Rules 1992. 
 

2.21 Transfer of amounts to Senior Citizen Welfare Fund 
 

In accordance with the requirement of the notification no G.S.R 380(E), issued by the Ministry of 
Finance, dated April 11th 2017 read with IRDAI Master circular no. 
IRDAI/F&A/CIR/Misc/282/11/2020 dated November 17, 2020, as amended by IRDAI vide circular 
No. IRDAI/Life/CIR/Misc/41/2/2024 dated February 16, 2024, on Unclaimed Amounts of 
policyholders, all insurer having unclaimed amounts of policyholder for a  period of more than 10 
years as on 30th September, every year the company have to transfer the same to the Senior 
Citizens  Welfare Fund (SCWF) on or before 1st March of the financial year. 

 
2.22 Taxation          

 
       Current tax 
 
The Company provides for income tax on the basis of taxable income for the current accounting 
period in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

  



Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to 
timing differences between the accounting income as per the  financial statements and 
the taxable income for the year. Deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax 
liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the balance sheet date. 

 
Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets 
can be realized in future, however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward 
loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty of 
realization of such assets. Deferred                       tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and 
appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain to be realized. 

 
2.23 Goods and Service Tax (GST) 

 
Goods and Services Tax (GST) collected on various output services for each State are considered 
as a liability                    against which GST paid for eligible inputs and services for each State are adjusted 
and the net liability is remitted to the appropriate authorities under GST, as stipulated. The 
unutilized input tax credits (ITC), if any, are carried forward under  and other  in 
Schedule 12 for adjustments in subsequent periods. The GST liability, if any arising after set off 
/ adjustment of ITC are disclosed in Schedule 13 under the heading  Tax 

 

 
2.24 Provisions and Contingent liabilities 

 
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event. It 
is probable                   that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and in respect of 
which a reliable estimate can be made. Provision (excluding employee benefits) are not 
discounted to their present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle 
the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 
 
Contingent losses arising from the claims other than insurance claims, litigation, assessment, 
fines, penalties, etc. are recorded when it is probable that a liability is incurred and the amount 
can be reasonably estimated. 
 
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible 
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
 
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
2.25 Earnings per Share 

 
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax in the Profit and Loss 
account attributable to the equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the reporting period. Number of equity shares used in computing diluted 
earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving 
basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares which would have been 
issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential shares. In computing diluted earnings per share 
only potential equity shares that are dilutive are considered. 

 



2.26 Cash Flow Statement 
 

Cash Flow Statement is prepared and reported using the Direct Method, in conformity with para 
2a(i) of Section I of Chapter 2 the Master Circular on Actuarial, Finance & Investment Function of 
Insurers, dated May 17, 2024, issued by the IRDAI. 

 
Cash & cash equivalent include cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, stamps on hand and 
fixed deposits (other than fixed deposits forming part of investment portfolio as per IRDAI 
investment regulations). 

 
2.27 Segment Reporting 

 
In case of General insurance business, based on the primary segments identified under Insurance 
Regulatory and Development Authority (Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) 
Regulations, 2024 read with AS 17 on   specified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has classified and disclosed segment information for Fire, 
Marine and Miscellaneous lines of business. There are no reportable geographical segments 
since all business is             written in India. 

  



Notes Forming Part of Accounts 
 

3. Contingent Liabilities 
(  in Lakh) 

 
Particulars 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

1. Partly paid-up investments - - 
2. Underwriting commitments outstanding - - 

3. 
Claims, other than those under policies, not 
acknowledged as debts - - 

4. Guarantees given by or on behalf of the Company - - 
5. Statutory demands/ liabilities in dispute, not provided for 

Refer Note-1 
6,534 6,547 

6. 
Re-insurance obligations to the extent not provided for 
in 
Accounts 

- - 

7a
. 

Others  Claims lodged by policyholders in court under 
dispute not provided for 4,498 5,157 

7b
. 

Others  Refer Note-2 
10,473 10,473 

 
TOTAL 21,505 22,177 

 

Note 1: a) 
authorities amounting 

65 
the same. 

    b) E l lakhs)  under protest pursuant 
to a GST proceeding on account of alleged ineligible input tax credit entitlement on certain 
marketing expenses and GST liability towards the exemption provided for crop related 
reinsurance premium. However, the Company has been advised that its tax position on the 
matters is legally valid and the adopted tax position is legally tenable. Accordingly, the 

31st March, 2025. 

 c) ,892 lakhs raised by Income Tax Authorities for three financial 
years towards various industry vide issues including disallowance of expenses such as 
provision for IBNR, reinsurance premium paid to foreign reinsurance branches, admin fees 
paid to lead insurers, commission paid to reinsurance companies, certain marketing expenses, 
denial of exempt income, etc. The company has filed an appeal at Commissioner appeal level 
for all three financial years. The Company has been advised that its tax position on the matters 
is legally valid and the adopted tax position is legally tenable. 

 d) Show-cause notices issued by various Government Authorities are not considered as an 
obligation. When any order or notice is raised by the authorities for which the Company is in 
appeal under adjudication, these are disclosed as contingent liability except in cases where 
the probability of any financial outflow is remote.  

 

Note 2: The company is informed of imposing penalty  1,109 lakhs 1,109 lakhs) from 
9,364 lakhs 9,364 lakhs) from Gujarat State 

for the alleged delay in settlement of crop claims to the farmers. Crop claims of eligible farmers 
of the Gujarat State have already been settled in March 2024, after receipt of premium subsidy 
from Central and State Governments in March 2024. The writ petition challenging the 



imposition of penalty by the State Government of Haryana and the State Government of 
Gujarat are sub-judice before respective High Courts. Considering the operational guidelines 
for PMFBY schemes and defense raised by the Company in Writs, the chance of penalty 
succeeding against the company is remote. 

 

       Pending Litigation  

             
customers and proceedings pending with tax authorities. The Company has reviewed all its 
pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are 
required and disclosed the contingent liability (refer note 1 of Schedule 16 (C)) where applicable, 
in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to 
have a material adverse effect on its financial results as at March 31, 2025. 

 
4.   Encumbrances on Assets 

 
The  assets are located within India and are free from encumbrances and the company 
has maintained collateral in the form of securities amounting to  1,000 lakhs 
1,000 lakhs ) towards margin for trading in TREPS segment and  1,350 lakhs (Previous year  
NIL) towards margin of trading in G-Sec segment with Clearing Corporation of India Limited as 
deposit towards Settlement Guarantee. 

 
5. Commitments 

 
The commitments made for investments is  500 lakhs (previous  Nil lakhs). Estimated 
amounts of contracts            remaining to be executed on account of Fixed Assets (net of advances)  
957 lakhs (previous year  1,602 lakhs). 
 

6. Claims 
 

a. Claims, less reinsurance paid to claimants in/ outside India are as under: 
        (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
In India 1,72,378   1,57,874  
Outside India 117   142  

Total 1,72,495   1,58,016  
 

b. Claims where the claim payment period exceeds four years: 
 

As per IRDAI (Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024, the 
claims made in respect of contracts where the claims payment period exceeds 4 years from the 
date of settlement of claim are to be recognized on actuarial basis. Accordingly, the Appointed 
Actuary has certified that there are no such claim payments which are exceeding 4 years from 
the date of settlement of claim. 

c. Ageing of Gross Claims outstanding is set out in the table below: 
        (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
As at  

March 31, 2025 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
Outstanding for less than six months* 52,949   73,340  
Outstanding for more than six months* 1,48,884   1,26,692  
Total 2,01,832   2,00,032  

(*Excluding IBNR/ IBNER Reserve) 
 



d. Claims settled and remaining unpaid for more than six months is  Nil (previous year:  Nil). 
 
e. During the year, the company has been engaged in the process of settlement of Motor Third Party 

Claims by entering into consent terms with claimants. The objective was to minimize litigations 
benefiting claimants and realizing savings against actual liabilities. 

7.   Premiums 
 

a. Premium, less reinsurance, written from business in / outside India is given below: 
      (  in lakh) 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
In India 2,49,556 2,10,933 
Outside India - - 

 
b.  Nil (Previous year  Nil). 

 
 

8. Extent of Risks Retained and Re-insured 
 

Extent of risks retained and reinsured (excluding Excess of Loss and Catastrophe re-insurance) 
based on      Gross Written Premium is given below: 

 

Particulars Basis 
For the  

year ended 
March 31, 2025 

For the  
year ended 
March 31, 

2024 
Retention Ceded Retention Ceded 

Fire Value at risk 11% 89% 18% 82% 
Marine Value at risk 26% 74% 26% 74% 
Miscellaneous      
- Motor Value at risk 52% 48% 53% 47% 
-  

Compensation 
Value at risk 96% 4% 96% 4% 

- Personal Accident Value at risk 29% 71% 37% 63% 
- Health Insurance Value at risk 77% 23% 84% 16% 
- Public/Product 

Liability 
Value at risk 54% 46% 48% 52% 

- Engineering Value at risk 16% 84% 19% 81% 
- Aviation Value at risk 0% 0% 0% 0% 
- Credit Insurance Value at risk 2% 98% 1% 99% 
- Weather/Crop 

Insurance 
Value at risk 40% 60% 41% 59% 

- Others Value at risk 37% 63% 45% 55% 
 
  



Reinsurance Regulations  
 
As per Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (General Insurance  
Reinsurance) Regulations, 2018 (IRDAI Reinsurance Regulations), prior approval from IRDAI is 
required in case of re-  by the cedants 
transacting other than life insurance business shall be subject to the following overall cession 
limits during a financial year. 
 
Rating of the CBR as per Standard & Poor or equivalent Maximum overall 

cession limits 
allowed per CBR 

BBB & BBB+ of Standard & Poor 10% 
Greater than BBB+ and up to & including A+ of Standard & Poor 15% 
Greater than A+ of Standard & Poor 20% 

 
In terms of IRDAI Reinsurance Regulations, the Company has submitted details in respect of its 
reinsurance treaties including those where the reinsurance support exceeds limits as prescribed 
above from an overseas reinsurer. 

 
9. Investments 

 
Investments are made in accordance with the stipulations laid down by the Insurance Act, 1938, 
and the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Actuarial, Finance and Investment 
Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024 as               updated from time to time. All the investments of the 
Company are performing investments except investment in bonds of Infrastructure Leasing and 
Financial Services Limited . 
 
On maturity, unsettled Investment receivables pertaining to security issued by Infrastructure 
Leasing and Financial Services Limited (IL&FS) has been classified to Schedule  12 Advances 
& Other Assets. 
 

25 (of 
star Infra Investment Trust 

shareholders  account with the corresponding reversal of provisions made in earlier years. The 
INVIT units got listed on March 11, 2025, but were valued at face value without any MTM 

adjustment as on March 31, 2025, due to no trading since listing. Amount appearing as receivable 
amounts  entire amount 
has been fully provided in the books of accounts. 

Unrealized loss arising due to changes in the fair value of listed equity shares, Mutual Fund and 
Alternate Investment Fund for the year ended March 31, 2025, is  2,327 lakhs (previous year 
gain of  621 lakhs). 

 
The company has provided for  NIL lakhs (previous year  258 lakhs) pertaining to impairment 
of equity, the same has been charged to the Profit & Loss Account. 

 

a) Value of Contracts in relation to Investment for: 
                 (  in Lakh) 

                            Particulars 
As at 

 March 31, 2025 
As at  

March 31, 2024 

Purchase where deliveries are pending 11,767 1,696  
Sales where payments are overdue 8,567 996  

 



The historical cost of equity share, mutual fund and alternate Investment Fund (valued on fair 
value) basis is  45,316 Lakhs (previous year  21,779 Lakhs). 

 

b) Investment in Reverse Repo 
 

The Company has not made investment in Reverse Repo transaction in 
Government  Securities  as on 31st March 2025.This is disclosed as required by the the IRDAI 
(Actuarial, Finance & Investment Function of Insurers) Regulation, 2024 dated May 17th, 2024 
and as per the directions laid down by RBI via notification IDMD.DOD.05/11.08.38/2009-10 dated 
January 8th, 2010 and as updated from time to time. 

Particulars Minimum 
outstanding 

during the year 

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year 

Daily average 
outstanding 

during the year 

Outstanding 
as on March 

31, 2025 

Securities Sold under repo         
1. Government Securities NIL NIL NIL NIL 
2. Corporate Debt Securities NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Securities purchased under 
reverse repo 

    

1. Government Securities NIL NIL NIL NIL 
2. Corporate Debt Securities NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 
c) Provision for Standard assets for debt portfolio 
 

In accordance with IRDAI (Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 
2024 dated May 17, 2024, para 3.7 - Income Recognition, Asset Classification, Provisioning and 
Other Related Matters, a provision for standard assets at 0.40% of the value of the asset is 
required. There are no loans in the nature of investments outstanding and hence, no provisioning 
has been made during the year. 

 
d) Provision for Diminution in value of Investment 

                                 Lakh) 
Particulars As at 

 March 31, 2025 
As at  

March 31, 2024 

Opening Balance 4,221 4,446  

Add: Additional Provision during the period NIL NIL 

Less: Reversal of Provision  (473) (225)  

Closing Balance 3,747 4,221  

1. During the period, 473 lakhs was reversed on account of receipt of 
part settlement proceeds of  73 lakhs and 4,00,00 Units of Roadstar Infra Investment Trust 
(InvIT) at Face value of Rs 100 from Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Services Limited 
(IL&FS) towards principal payment. 
 

2.  3,747 Lakhs. 
 4,221 Lakhs). 

 
e) Accounting for impairment in valuation of investments 

1.     Equity:  
     The Company has made a provision for impairment on the value of investments on a prudent 

basis for loss on account of the reduction in market values of long-term investment in equities 
as under:  

  



  a. Provision for impairment in the value of equity investments as at year ended 
                                                        Lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025  

As at 
March 31, 2024  

Policyholders Account (Revenue A/c) - - 
Shareholders Account (Profit & Loss A/c) - 258 
Total - 258 
Note: Above provision for impairment has been adjusted with fair value change account under 

 
b. Charge/(reversal) of impairment in the value of equity investments for the year ended: 

                               Lakh) 
Particulars Year Ended 

March 31, 2025  
Year Ended 
March 31, 2024 

Policyholders Account (Revenue A/c) - - 

Shareholders Account (Profit & Loss A/c) (258)     206 

Total (258) 206 
  Note: The figures in the bracket, if any, indicate reversal of impairment loss earlier recognised 

in Revenue or Profit and Loss Account. 
 

2. Alternative Investment Fund: 
a. Provision for impairment in the value of AIF investments as at the year ended: 

         
                                                            Lakh) 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025  

As at 
March 31, 2024  

Policyholders Account (Revenue A/c) - - 

Shareholders Account (Profit & Loss A/c) - - 

Total - - 
      Note: Above provision for impairment has been adjusted with fair value change account under    

 
 
          b. Charge/(reversal) of impairment in the value of AIF investments for the year ended: 

       Lakh) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: The figures in the bracket, if any, indicate reversal of impairment loss earlier recognised 
in Revenue or Profit and Loss Account. 

 

10. Non-Executive Chairman Remuneration 
 

The details of remunerations of Non-Executive Chairman as per the terms of appointment are as 
under: - 

                                                            
(  in Lakh)  

  Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
Salary, Remuneration & Allowances - - 
Sitting Fees 5 4  
Total 5 4  

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025  
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 

Policyholders Account (Revenue A/c) - - 

Shareholders Account (Profit & Loss 
A/c) 

-      - 

Total -      - 



 
11. Rural and Social Sector Obligations are as follows  

 
The rural and social sector obligations have been given as per IRDAI (Rural, Social Sector and 
Motor Third Party Obligations) Regulations, 2024 effective from April 1, 2024. The obligation has 
changed with new regulation and thus, not comparable with previous year figures. 

 

a. Rural Sector 

             
           

Financial 
Year 

Total Number in Gram Panchayat 
Number insured by all insurers in Gram 

Panchayat 
% covered 

Fire 
(Dwellings 
& Shops) 

Motor 
(Motor 

Vehicles) 

Health 
Ins. 

(Lives) 

PA 
(Lives) 

Fire 
(Dwellings 
& Shops) 

Motor 
(Motor 

Vehicles) 

Health 
Ins. 

(Lives) 

PA 
(Lives) 

Fire 
(Dwellings 
& Shops) 

Motor 
(Motor 

Vehicles) 

Health 
Ins. 

(Lives) 

PA 
(Lives) 

FY 24-25 - - - - 27 50 2 13 - - - - 

                

    in Lakh) 
 
Financial 
Year 

 
Gross Direct 
premium 

Amount of  
premium procured 

in Rural Sector 

Rural Sector 
premium as 
to GDPI (%) 

Required % 
as per the 
Regulations 

Compliance 
with the           

Regulations 
(Yes/No) 

2023-24 462,219 58,297 12.61% 7.0% Yes 
 

b. Social Sector 

                                                                                                                            
 in Lakh) 

 
 

12. Premium Deficiency 
 
The Premium deficiency is calculated and duly certified by the Appointed Actuary. There is no 
premium deficiency arises as on March 31, 2025 (Previous Year: NIL) for the company at 
company level as determined by Appointed Actuary. 

  

Particulars 
Total No of lives 

insured 
No of lives insured under 
social sector as defined 

% of lives covered 
under social sector 

FY 24-25 2,57,83,805 91,44,808 35% 
 

 
 

Financial 
Year 

Total 
business in 

the 
preceding 
Financial 

Year 

Number of lives 
covered under 

Social Sector in 
the FY for which 

figures are 
Reported 

 
Social Sector 

lives as
 to Total 
Business (%) 

 

Required % 
as per the 

Regulations 

 
Compliance 

with the 
Regulations 

(Yes/No) 

2023-24 6,20,19,097   35,66,118 5.75% 5.0% Yes 



 
 

13. (a) IBNR and IBNER Calculations 
 

The liability for IBNR (including IBNER) as at March 31, 2025, is estimated using actuarial 
techniques in accordance with the IRDAI (Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of 
Insurers) Regulations, 2024 and wherever relevant the Actuarial Practice Standard 21 (Appointed 
Actuary and General Insurance Business) issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India. The 
Appointed Actuary has certified that for all lines of business, multiple methods for the purpose of 
determination of IBNR (including IBNER) were analysed and the final IBNR is estimated after 
evaluating the results produced by different methods. Net IBNR reserves have arrived after 
allowance for reinsurance recoveries. 
  
The Appointed Actuary has used the combination of the Basic Chain Ladder Method, Born-
Huetter Ferguson Method, and Ultimate Loss Ratio Method for the projection of IBNR & IBNER 
for each lines of business. 
        
Pursuant to revised IRDAI (Actuarial, Finance and Investment functions of insurers) Regulations, 
2024 dated May 17, 2024, claims reserves are determined as the aggregate amount of 
Outstanding Claims reserve and Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claim reserve for 28 stipulated 
lines of business. 
 
IBNR/IBNER reserves are also inclusive of reserves for any closed claims which are likely to be 
reopened, contingent/litigious claims which are likely to be settled in the favour of claimant for all 
line of business. 

 
 

(b) Provision for Free Look Period 
 

The net provision for free look period is  0.5 Lakhs (previous year  1 Lakhs ) as certified by        
Appointed Actuary.  

 
 

14. Environment Relief Fund 
 

3 
2 

Central Pollution Control Board, Environment Relief Fund Account as per 
notification of Environment Relief Fund (ERF) scheme under the public liability Insurance Act, 
1991 as amended from time to time. For the financial year 2024- 1 Lakhs is 
outstanding. 
 

 
15. Contribution to Marine Cargo pool for excluded territories  Russia, Ukraine, Belarus 

(MCPET)  
 
The Company has participated in the MCPET for all transactions accounted on or after June 1, 
2022, and accordingly has recorded its share of the retrocession premium based on latest 
statement/information received. 

 
 

16. Contributions to Hit & Run Compensation (Erstwhile Solatium Fund) & Account for 
Insured Vehicles (Golden Hour treatment Fund) 
 
During the year the Company has charged  1,492 lakhs (Previous year  118 lakhs) to the 
Revenue Accounts. 

  



 
17. Segmental Reporting 

 
is identified in 

accordance with AS-17 Segment Reporting read with the regulations. The segment revenues and 
segment results related to the same have been reported in the financial statements. The income 
& expenditure attributable to the business segment are allocated as mentioned in para 2.15 and 
2.16. 
 
Segmental Assets & Liabilities to the extent of identifiable to Business segment. 
 
                           in Lakh) 

  

Segment Year 
Reserve for 

unexpired risk 
Claims 

Outstanding 
Outstanding 
Premium  

Fire 2024-25 4,164 3,221 - 
2023-24 5,236         4,246                   -   

Marine Cargo 2024-25 654 865 - 
2023-24        582            525                   -   

Marine Hull 2024-25 33 3 - 
2023-24          30                3                   -   

Motor OD 2024-25 29,102 7,383 - 
2023-24   25,736       11,823                   -   

Motor TP 2024-25 29,791 1,52,673 - 
2023-24   29,364    1,50,190                   -   

Workmen Compensation 2024-25 69 273 - 
2023-24         62            269                   -   

Personal Accident 2024-25 1,420 6,017 - 
2023-24     1,311         5,775                   -   

Health 2024-25 24,050 6,576 2,136 
2023-24   14,745         5,957  1,860    

Public/Product Liability 2024-25 348 319 - 
2023-24        266             391                   -   

Engineering 2024-25 378 307 - 
2023-24        185            265                   -   

Aviation 2024-25 - -   - 
2023-24                  -                    -                    -   

Credit Insurance 2024-25 18 - - 
2023-24             4  -                  -   

Weather / Crop Insurance 2024-25 57 34,141 38,608 
2023-24              -       21,974   23,998  

Others 2024-25 1,816 1,612 - 
2023-24     1,723         1,689                   -   

Total 2024-25 91,901 2,13,390 40,744 
2023-24 79,246  2,03,108        25,858  



18. Operating Lease Commitments 
 

premises. In respect of these agreements, refundable deposits have been given. Lease rentals 
are recognized in the Revenue Accounts for the year and included under  rates and  
in Schedule 4. 
 
The future minimum lease payments relating to leasing arrangements are disclosed below. 

                                  
(  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
Payable not later than one year 974                  374  
Payable later than one year but not later than five years 2,747 263  
Payable later than five years - -  

 
An amount of  1,170 Lakhs (previous year  1,000 Lakhs) towards lease payments is recognized 
in Revenue Accounts. 
 

  
19.  Deferred Taxes 

 
Accounting Standard (AS) 22  Accounting for Taxes on Income requires the Company to accrue 
taxes on income in the same period as the revenue and expenses to which they relate. As the 
taxable income is different from the reported income due to timing differences, there arises a 
potential deferred tax asset                          or deferred tax liability, as the case may be. The components of the 
company's deferred tax assets / liabilities are as under: 

                     (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
Deferred tax asset   
Timing difference on account of -   

  Provision for Diminution Value of Investment   
Depreciation as per Section 32 as per provision of 
I. T. Act,1961   

Provision for doubtful debts   
Provision for Expenses - - 
Total   
Deferred tax liability - - 
Net deferred tax asset / (liability)   

 
 
  



 

20. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
 

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the Profit after Tax in the Profit and Loss Account 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The numbers used 
in calculating                     basic and diluted earnings per equity share are as follows: 

                     (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2024 

Profit / (Loss) available to equity 
shareholders  

18,986 18,165  

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF 
EQUITY SHARES 

   

Number of Equity Shares outstanding at the 
beginning of the year 

36,81,81,820  36,81,81,820 

Shares issued during the year -                  -   

Total Number of Equity Shares outstanding at 
the end of the year 

36,81,81,820 36,81,81,820 

Weighted average number of Equity Shares 
outstanding during the year 

36,81,81,820 36,81,81,820 

Add: Effect of dilutive issues of options and 
shares application pending allotment 

NA NA 

Diluted weighted average number of Equity 
Shares outstanding during the year 

36,81,81,820 36,81,81,820 

Nominal Value Per Share   

Basic Earnings Per Share 5.16 4.93 

Diluted Earnings Per Share 5.16                   4.93  

 

21. Related Party Disclosure 

 
As per the Accounting Standard (AS) 18 on Related Party  the related parties of the 
company are as follows: 
 

a) Nature of Relationship & Names of the related parties: 
 

Promoters 

Indian Bank 

Sompo Japan Insurance Inc 

Sompo Insurance Singapore Pte. Ltd. (Sompo Group Company) 

Indian Overseas Bank  

Karnataka Bank 
Dabur Investment Corporation 

Indbank Merchant banking ltd (Related party of Indian Bank) 
 

    Key Management Personnel 
 

Mr. Sharad Mathur (MD & CEO)  
Mr. Kuniaki Takahashi (Deputy CEO) 
Mr. Nilesh Mejari (Chief Financial Officer) 
Ms. Aarti Ganesh Kamath (Company Secretary) 



Mr. Vikas Garg (Appointed Actuary) 
Mr. Hareshwar Karekar (Chief Investment Officer) 
Mr. Rishin Rai (Chief Risk Officer) 
Mr. Chinmay Pradeep Adhikari (Chief Human Resources Officer) (Cessation w.e.f. 11th July 2024) 
Ms. Priti Singh (Chief People Officer) (Appointed w.e.f. 27th August 2024) 
Ms. Varsha Gujarathi (Chief Customer Officer) 
Mr. Vikram Jain (Chief Technology officer and Business Transformation) 
Mr. Sameer Patwardhan (Chief Compliance Officer) (Appointed w.e.f. 11th July 2024) 
Mr. Mahendra Tripathi (Chief Compliance Officer) (Cessation w.e.f. 27th May 2024) 
Ms. Arti Mulik (Chief Technical Officer) 
Mr. Rajesh Keny (Head Reinsurance) 
Mr. Prasanna Indi (Head Internal Audit) 

 
 

Relatives of KMP with whom transactions have taken place during the year: 
NIL 

 
b) Details of Transactions: 
                                     (  in Lakh) 

Name of the Related  Party 
 
 
Year 

Indian Bank 
Sompo Japan 
Insurance Inc 

Indian 
Overseas 
Bank 

Nature of Relationship 
Promoters with more 

than 20% voting 
rights 

Promoters with more 
than 20% voting 

rights 

Details of transactions with Related Parties 

Premium Income 
(Rendering of Services) 

2024-25 38 - 2 

2023-24 197  - 4 

Reinsurance Premium       
Ceded 

2024-25 - 11,431 - 

2023-24 - 8,459  - 

Share Capital 
2024-25 - - - 

2023-24 - - - 

Share Premium 
2024-25 - - - 

2023-24 - - - 

Claim Payment 
2024-25 8 - 1 

2023-24 9 - 0.35 

Reinsurance Claim 
Recovery 

2024-25 - 2,300 - 

2023-24 - 2,668  - 

Commission Payout 
2024-25 2,010 - 1596 
2023-24 2,029  - 1,437  

RI Commission 
Recovered / Recoverable 

2024-25 - 1,543 - 

2023-24                          -  1,020  - 

Dividend Payout 
2024-25 263 319 166 

2023-24                           263                            319             166  

Other Expenditure 
2024-25 41 34 54 

2023-24 244  19  113  
 
 
 
 



Balances with related parties as at March 31, 2025 are as under: 

 
Share Capital 

2024-25 10,500 12,744 6,650 

2023-24 10,500 12,744 6,650 

Share Premium 
2024-25 - 14,716 - 

2023-24 - 14,716 - 

Premium Payable 
2024-25 - 8,113 - 
2023-24 - 7,220  - 

Commission Payable 
2024-25 194 - 110 

2023-24 131  - 72  

Claim Payable 
2024-25 0.2 - - 
2023-24                        0.4 -                 -  

Rent Deposit 
2024-25 - - - 
2023-24 - - - 

Renumeration 
2024-25 - - - 
2023-24 - - - 

   Assets 

Bank Balance 
2024-25 147 - 220 
2023-24 251  - 487  

Expense Receivable 
2024-25 - - - 
2023-24 - - - 

Commission Recoverable 
2024-25 - 1,859 - 
2023-24 - 1,515  - 

Reinsurance claim 
recoverable 

2024-25 - 3,707 - 
2023-24 - 2,890  - 

                     
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
  
 
 
 
 
 

Nature of Related Party  
Year 

 
Karnataka Bank Dabur Investment 

Corporation 

KMP and 
their 

relative Nature of Relationship 

  Details of transactions with Related Parties 

Premium Income 
(Rendering of Services) 

2024-25 198 156 - 

2023-24                        418                            140  0.04 

Claim Payment 
2024-25 21 59 - 

2023-24 287  103  - 

Commission Payout 
2024-25 1,973 - - 

2023-24 1,629  - - 

Dividend Payout 
2024-25 55 118 - 

2023-24                           55                            118  - 

Other Expenditure 
2024-25 9 - - 

2023-24 2  - - 

Remuneration 
2024-25 - - 516 
2023-24 - -            462  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Balances with related parties as at March 31, 2025 are as under: 

Nature of 
Related Party 

 
Year 

 
Karnataka Bank Dabur Investment 

Corporation 

KMP and 
their relative 

Nature of 
Relationship 

 
Share Capital 

2024-25 2,209 4,715 - 

2023-24 2,209 4,715 - 

Share Premium 
2024-25 - 2,045 - 
2023-24 - 2,045 - 

Commission 
Payable 

2024-25 76 - - 
2023-24 36 - - 

Claim Payable 
2024-25 73 8 - 
2023-24 32 19 - 

Assets 

Bank Balance 
2024-25 120 - - 
2023-24 126 - - 

Name of Related Party  
Year 

Indbank Merchant 
banking services Ltd 

Sompo Insurance 
Singapore Pte. Ltd. Nature of Relationship 

  Details of transactions with Related Parties 

Other Expenditure 
2024-25 5 1 

2023-24 2  17  

Name of Related Party  
Year 

SOMPO Holding INC SOMPO SIGORTA A.S. 
Nature of Relationship 

  Details of transactions with Related Parties 

Other Expenditure 
2024-25 5 27 

2023-24 -  -  



c .  Managing  Remuneration 
The details of remunerations of Managing Director as per the terms of appointment are as under:- 

                    (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 

Name of the MD / CEO / WTD Sharad Mathur 
Designation MD & CEO 

Fixed 
Pay 

Pay and Allowance (a) 413 367 
Perquisites etc. (b) 0.30 0.40 
Total (c) = (a) + (b) 413 368 

Variable 
Pay Cash Component (d) 

Paid - - 
Deferred 103 94 

Non-Cash Component (e) 
Settled - - 
Deferred - - 

Total (f) = (d) + (e) 
Paid /Settled - - 
Deferred 103 94 

Total of Fixed and Variable Pay (c) + (f) 516 462 
Amount debited to Revenue A/c 400 400 
Amount debited to Profit and Loss A/c 116 62 
Value of joining / Sign on bonus - - 
Retirement benefits like gratuity, pension, etc. paid during the 
year 

21 18 

Amount of deferred remuneration of earlier years paid/settled 
during the year 

  

 FY 2021-22 Deferred Bonus  2nd 
Tranche) 

- 13 

 FY 2021-22 Deferred Bonus  3rd 
Tranche) 

13 - 

 FY 2022-23 Bonus - 100 
 FY 2023-24 Bonus 94 - 
Deferred remuneration as on 31.03.2025   
 FY 2021-22 Deferred Bonus  3rd 

Tranche) 
- 13 

 FY 2023-24 Bonus - 94 
 FY 2024-25 Bonus 103* - 

*Subject to IRDAI approval. 
Note: - Provisions towards leave encashment is determined actuarially on an overall basis and 
accordingly, have not been considered for the above disclosure. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Circular no. IRDAI/F&I/CIR/MISC/82/5/2024 dated May 22, 
2024, Master Circular on Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2024,  remuneration 
of   400 Lakhs (Previous year  400 Lakhs) is charged to Revenue account and balance  116 Lakhs 
(Previous year   62 Lakhs) is transferred to profit and loss account as per IRDAI regulation. 
 
The Company has drafted a scheme for phantom stock allocation in line with IRDAI requirements. 

 
Phantom stock allocation to the designated employees were to be done basis meeting of predefined 
criteria of individual performance along with overall company performance with vesting options starting 
from March 31,2025 in 3 years. 

  



 

d. Pursuant to IRDAI/F&I/CIR/MISC/82/5/2024 dated May 22, 2024, Master Circular on Corporate 
Governance for Insurers, 2024, elements of remuneration package of Key Managerial Persons of 
the company are as under: 

                    (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
 Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 

Fixed 
Pay 

Pay and Allowance (a) 1,220 861 
Perquisites etc. (b) 1 - 
Total (c) = (a) + (b) 1,221 861 

Variable 
Pay Cash Component (d) 

Paid 21 - 
Deferred 130 80 

Non-Cash Component (e) 
Settled - - 
Deferred - - 

Total (f) = (d) + (e) 
Paid /Settled 29 - 
Deferred 130 80 

Total of Fixed and Variable Pay (c) + (f) 1,379 940 
Amount debited to Revenue A/c 1,379 940 
Amount debited to Profit and Loss A/c - - 
Value of joining / Sign on bonus 8 - 
Retirement benefits like gratuity, pension, etc. paid during 
the year 

81 58 

Amount of deferred remuneration of earlier years 
paid/settled during the year 

  

 FY 2021-22 Deferred Bonus  
3rd Tranche) 

- - 

 FY 2023-24 Bonus - - 
Deferred remuneration as on 31.03.2025   
 FY 2023-24 Bonus - 80 
 FY 2024-25 Bonus 130 - 

 
Note: Provision towards leave encashment is determined actuarially on overall basis and  accordingly     
has not been considered for the above disclosure. 

  



22. In accordance with direction of Master circular no. IRDAI/PP&GR/CIR/MISC/117/9/2024 dated 
September 05, 2024, age wise analysis of the unclaimed amounts of the policyholders as on 
March 31, 2025 is shown as under. The company has not appropriated/written back the 
unclaimed amounts of policyholders. 

                                                           (  in Lakh) 

Particulars Year 
Total 

Amount 
0-6 

Month s 
7-12 

Month s 
13-18 

Month s 
19-24 

Month s 
25-30 

Month s 
31-36 

Month s 
37-120 
Months 

Beyon d 
120 

month s 

Claims settled but 
not paid to the 
policyholders / 
beneficiaries due 
to any reasons 
except under 
litigation from the 
policyholders/ 
beneficiaries 

 
 
 
2024-25 
2023-24 
 

 
 
 

- 
- 

 
 
 

- 
- 

 
 
 

- 
- 

 
 
 

- 
- 

 
 
 

- 
- 

 
 
 

- 
- 

 
 
 

- 
- 

 
 
 

- 
- 

 
 
 

- 
- 

Sum due to 
policyholders/ 
beneficiaries on 
maturity or other 
wise 

 
2024-25 
2023-24 
 
 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

Any excess 
collection of the 
premium / tax or 
any other charges 
which  is 
refundable to the 
policy holders/ 
beneficiaries 
either as terms of 
conditions of the 
policy or as per 
law or as may be 
directed by
 the 
authority but not 
refunded so far. 

2024-25 
2023-24 

58 
60  

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
16  

 
1 

14  

 
19 
10  

 
11 
7  

 
 

      27     
      13 

 

- 
- 

Cheque Issued 
but not encashed 
by the policy 
holder / 
beneficiaries. 

 
2024-25 
2023-24 

 

494 
564  

 
- 
- 

 
 

 
- 

51 
 
 

83 
  79  

 
46 
  7  

 

75 
    46  

 
3 

10  
 

    277 
 371 

 
10 
- 
 

Remittance 
through 
NEFT/RTGS or 
any other 
electronic mode 
bounced back 

 
2024-25 
2023-24 

 

 
 2,720 
1,216 

 

- 
- 

- 
- 

402 
     189 

 
436 
199 
 

363 
  328 

 
265 
223 

 

1,254 
   276 

 
- 
- 

 

Total 
2024-25 
2023-24 

3,272 
   1,840 

- 
- 

- 
  52 

485 
     285 

483 
  220 

456 
  383 

279 
240 

1,559 
   660 

10 
- 

 
Note: 1. The amount disclosed in Schedule 13 under Current Liabilities - Unclaimed Amount of 
Policyholders includes Income earned on Investments pertaining to Unclaimed Amount of 

461 Lakhs 29 Lakhs)  
 

3,332 Lakhs pertaining to Unclaimed Amount of Policyholders is 
disclosed under Schedule 12- 1,941 Lakhs). 

 



23. Unclaimed Amount due to  

 (  in Lakh) 
 

Particulars 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2025 

Year Ended    
March 31, 2024 

Policy 
Dues 

Income 
Accrued 

Policy 
Dues 

Income 
Accrued 

Opening Balance 1,511 329 869   208   

Add: Amount transferred to 
unclaimed amount during the 
year 

2,266 - 1,725  - 

Add: Cheques issued out of the 
unclaimed amount but not encashed 
by the policyholders (To be included 
only when the cheques are stale) 

- - - - 

Add: Investment Income on Unclaimed 
Fund 

- 224 -    162   

Less: Amount paid during the year 940 77 1,075   34   

Less: Amount transferred to SCWF 
(Net of claims paid in respect of 
amount transferred earlier). 

26 15 8  7  

Closing Balance of Unclaimed 
Amount 

2,811 461 1,511  329  

 
In accordance with Master circular no. IRDAI/PP&GR/CIR/MISC/117/9/2024 dated September 
05, 2024, we have transferred  41 Lakhs including Interest accrued thereon to Senior citizen 
welfare fund as per the process laid down in SCWF rules 2016 read with accounting procedure 
to transfer the funds into SCWF. 

 
 

24. Employee Benefits 
 

The disclosures of Employee benefits as required under Accounting Standard 15 are given below: 
 

I. Defined Contribution Plan 
 

a. Provident Fund 
 

The provident fund is operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the 
scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the 
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. These funds are recognized by the Income tax 
authorities. The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Revenue Account(s) / 
Profit and Loss Account for the year: 

 
        (  in Lakh) 

Benefit (Contribution to) 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
Provident Fund 608 416  

 
  



 

b. National Pension Scheme 
 

The National Pension Scheme is operated by the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development 
Authority. Under the scheme, the Company is contributing a specified percentage of basic salary 
to the retirement benefit schemes to fund for eligible employee. These funds are recognized by the 
Income tax authorities. The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Revenue 
Account(s)/ Profit and Loss Account for the year: 

   (  in Lakh) 

Benefit (Contribution to) 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
National Pension Scheme 42 26  

 

II. Defined Benefit Plans: 
 

a) Gratuity 
b) Leave Encashment 

 
Gratuity is payable to employees as per Payment of Gratuity Act. Leave encashment is payable 
to eligible employees who have earned leave during the employment and /or on separation as 
per the  makes contribution to Group Gratuity Scheme and Group 
Leave Encashment Scheme operated by Life Insurance Corporation of India. 
 
Valuations in respect of Gratuity and Leave Encashment have been carried out by independent 

actuary, as at the Balance Sheet date, based on the following assumptions. 

 
a) Gratuity 

 
i. Assumption 

 

Particulars 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2024 
Discount rate 6.54% 7.16% 
Salary Escalation 9.30% 10.00% 
Attrition rate 26.00% 25.00% 
Expected return on plan assets 6.54% 7.16% 

Mortality rate Table 
Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality 2012-14 
(Urban) 

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) 

Urban 
 
 

ii. Change in present value of obligations 

             (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2024 
Present value of obligations as at the 
beginning of the year 656 559  

Interest cost 47 41  
Current Service Cost 138 119  

Past Service Cost - - 
Benefits Paid (63) (73) 
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation 45 10  
Present value of obligations as at the end 
of the year 

823 656  

 
 



iii. Changes in the Fair Value of Assets 

               (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 

Opening fair value of plan assets 637        444  
Expected return 46          32  
Contributions paid 186        229  
Benefits Paid (63) (73) 
Actuarial gains / (losses) 10 5  
Closing fair value of plan assets 816 637  

 

iv. Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 

              (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 

Present value of obligations as at the end of the year 823 656  
Present value of assets       816         637  

Net Assets / (Liability) recognized in the Balance 
Sheet 

       (7)         (18)  

 

v.            Expenses recognized in Revenue Account 

             (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 

Current Service cost 139        119  
Past Service Cost - - 
Interest Cost 1 8  
Expected return on plan assets - - 

Net Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year 35 5  
Expenses recognized in Revenue Accounts 175 133  

 
 

vi. Experience adjustments of last five years is given below 

              (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 

Year 
Ended 
March 

31, 2025 

Year 
Ended 
March 

31, 2024 

Year 
Ended 
March 

31, 2023 

Year 
Ended 
March 

31, 2022 

Year 
Ended 

March 31, 
2021 

Defined Benefit Obligation 823 656  559  470  481  

Plan assets 816 637  444  513  545  

Surplus / (Deficit) (7) (18) (115) 43  64  

(Gain) / loss on Plan liabilities - - - - - 

Gain/ (loss) on Plan Assets 55 37  34  49  33  

 

The contribution expected to be made by the Company during the financial year 2025-26, 

amounts to                           167 Lakhs (previous year 157 Lakhs). 

  



b) Leave Encashment 

 
a) Assumption 

 

Particulars 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2024 
Discount rate 6.54% 7.16% 
Salary Escalation 9.30% 10.00% 

 
Mortality rate Table 

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality 2012-14 (Urban)  

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality 2012-14 (Urban) 

 
b) Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 

                          (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
Opening Balance 39 26 

Add/Less provision for the year 38 13 
Closing Balance 77 39 

 

25. Outsourcing, business development and marketing support expenses 
             (  in Lakh) 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
Outsourcing expenses 6,023 3,558  
Business development 4,125                  3,381  
Marketing support 898 654  

 
     

Sr No Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 

1 Call center services 8  20  
2 Compliance Services 11  9  
3 Crop business support services 4,900  2,607  
4 Document management 103  90  
5 IT infrastructure support 699  534  
6 Manpower Services 78  74  
7 Policy printing, dispatch & Others 224  226  
 Total Operating Expenses  6,023 3,558 

 
  



26. The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 

According to information available with the management, on the basis of information received 
from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) Act, the Company has amounts due to Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises under the said Act as follows: 

   in Lakh) 

Sr No Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any 

supplier as at the end of the year 
39 - 

ii) Interest due on the above amount - - 
iii) The amount of interest paid by in terms of 

Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

4 - 

iv) Amounts of the payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day during the year. 

-                 252  

v) Amount of interest due and payable for the 
period of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under Micro Small and 
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 

0.03                       4  

vi) Amount of interest accrued and remaining 
unpaid at the end of the year 

0.03                        4 

vii) The amount of further interest remaining due 
and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest dues as 
above are actually paid to the small enterprise 

0.03                        4  

 
The above note has been prepared by the management and relied upon by the Auditors. 
 

27. In view of the management, there is no primary evidence of impairment in the carrying amount of 
its fixed              assets as per the provisions of Accounting Standard 28 issued by ICAI. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

28. Disclosures of various penal actions taken by various Government Authorities. 
 

 
Sr 
No. 

 
Authority 

 
Year 

Non- 
Compliance

/  
Violation 

         in Lakh) 

Penalty 
Awarded 

Penalty 
Paid 

Penalty 
Waived/ 
Reduced 

 
1 

 
Insurance Regulatory and 
Development Authority of India 

2024-25 - - - - 

2023-24 - - - - 

 
2 

 
Goods and Service Tax 
Authorities 

2024-25 - - - - 

2023-24 - 1 1 - 

 
3 

 
Income Tax Authorities 

2024-25 - - - - 

2023-24 - - - - 

 
4 

 
Any other Tax Authorities 

2024-25 - - - - 

2023-24 - - - - 

 

5 
Enforcement Directorate/ 
Adjudicating Authority/ Tribunal 
or any Authority under FEMA 

2024-25 - - - - 

2023-24 - - - - 

 
 

6 

Registrar of Companies/ 
NCLT/CLB/ Department of 
Corporate Affairs or any 
Authority under Companies 
1956 

2024-25 - - - - 

2023-24 - - - - 

 
 

7 

Penalty awarded by any Court/ 
Tribunal for any matter including 
claim settlement but excluding 
compensation 

2024-25 - - - - 

2023-24 - - - - 

 
8 Securities and Exchange Board 

of India 

2024-25 - - - - 

2023-24 - - - - 
 

9 
 
Competition Commission of 
India 

2024-25 - - - - 

2023-24 - - - - 

 
10 

Any other Central/State/Local 
Government / Statutory 
Authority  Professional Tax 
Penalty 

2024-25 - - - - 

2023-24 - - - - 

 

29. As at March 31, 2025,                the Company did not have any outstanding derivative contracts. 
 

30. For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company is not required to transfer any amount into the 
Investor       Education and Protection Fund. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



31. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
 

440 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025 (previous year ended 
March 31, 2024  295 lakhs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility activities mentioned in 
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 
                                   in Lakh) 

Sector in which project is covered 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
Education 139       45  
Healthcare 113 57  
Rural Development 91 92  
Eradicating Hunger, Poverty and 
malnutrition 

10 2 

Training to promote sports Nil  14  
Measures for the benefit of armed forces 
veterans, war widows and their dependents 

Nil  10  

Protection of National Heritage, Art and 
Culture 

Nil  23  

Women Empowerment 41 20  
Maintaining Ecological balance, protecting 
Flora and Fauna, promoting animal welfare, 
conserving natural resources and 
preserving the quality of soil, air and water 

Nil  17  

Animal Welfare Nil  Nil 
Skill Development 25 Nil 
Making Available safe drinking water Nil  Nil 
Paralympic Sports Nil  Nil 
Fund Specified in Schedule VII (PMNRF) Nil  0.08 
Administrative Cost 22 15  

Total 440 295  
 

i. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 441 
lakhs -including short spent amount of  1 lakh pertaining to previous year (previous year ended 
March 31, 2024  296 lakhs). 
 

ii. Amount approved by the Board to be spent by the Company during the year ended March 31, 
2025 440 lakhs (previous year ended March 31, 2024 95 lakhs). 
 

iii. *Amount of  1 lakhs (of previous year ended March 31, 2024) was transferred to the Prime 
th June 2024. 

 
iv. Amount spent during the year on  

       (  in Lakh) 
Particulars Year Ended  

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2024 
Construction/ acquisition of any asset Nil Nil 
On purposes other than mentioned above 440 295 
 

v. Amounts of related party transactions pertaining to CSR related activities for the year ended 
March 31, 2025 4  
 

 

 

 

 

 



vi. Unspent CSR Amount 

                  in Lakh) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

vii. Excess amount for setoff if any 

                 (  in Lakh) 

In case of Section 135(5) excess amount spent 

Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended  

March 31, 2024 
Opening balance of excess CSR amount spent  Nil Nil 

CSR amount required to be spent during the year  Nil Nil 

CSR amount spent for the year Nil Nil 

Excess amount spent for the financial year Nil Nil 

CSR amount set-off during the year Nil Nil 

Excess CSR amount lapsed during the year Nil Nil 

Closing balance of CSR amount available for set-off Nil Nil 

                                                           
 

32. No. of Claims intimated, disposed-off and pending with details of duration. 
 

  Particulars 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 

No. of Claims intimated during the year 16,66,066 23,93,342 

No. of Claims disposed-off during the year 17,72,785 22,89,101 
No. of Claims pending during the year 58,343 1,65,062 

 
 

 

  Period 

No. of Claims Disposed Off No. of Outstanding Claims 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2025 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024 

Year Ended  
March 31, 2025 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2024 

Up to 30 days 15,18,069 21,60,754 17,660 52,525 
31 days to 6 months 1,51,337 96,248 14,984 16,501 
6 months to 1 year 92,262 24,084 8,073 80,107 
1 year to 5 years 9,617 7,333 15,241 12,977 
5 years and above 1,500 682 2,385 2,952 

Total 17,72,785 22,89,101 58,343 1,65,062 
 

 
33. No Pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Non-executive directors except director sitting 

fees of  154 lakhs  90 lakhs) paid during the FY 2024-25. 
 

  

In case of Section 135(5) unspent amount 

Particulars 
Year Ended    

March 31, 2025 
Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 
Opening balance of Unspent CSR amount Nil 0.25 
Amount deposited in Specified Fund of Sch. VII 
within 6 months 

Nil Nil 

CSR amount required to spent for the year Nil Nil 

CSR amount spent for the year Nil 0.25 

Closing balance of Unspent CSR amount  Nil Nil 



34.   Dividend 
 

The Board of Directors of the company, at their meeting held on May 09, 2025, have proposed a 
 0.25 0.25  920 Lakhs (Previous 

920 Lakhs) for FY 2024-25. The proposed dividend is subject to the approval of 
shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
The company has paid final dividend amounting  920 Lakhs for financial year 2023-24 as 
approved by shareholders in the 17th Annual General Meeting dated July 30, 2024. The company 
has complied with statutory provisions of Companies Act. 

 

35. Solvency Margin 
                   (  in Lakh) 

  Solvency Margin As at  
March 31, 2025 

As at  
March 31, 2024 

Required Solvency margin under IRDAI 
Regulations (A) 

81,107 72,560 

Available solvency margin (B) 1,59,617 1,30,384 

Solvency ratio actual (times) (B/A) 1.97 1.80 

Solvency ratio prescribed by Regulation 1.50 1.50 
 

 
 
36. Reporting under Rule 11 of companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 

 
There are no funds advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign  
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any 

 security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 
 
There are no funds received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities 
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
 

37. Disclosures on other work given to Statutory Auditors 
 

Pursuant to clause 7.1(i) of the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by the IRDAI on May 
18, 2016 the additional work entrusted to the Statutory Auditors is given below: 

                                          in Lakh) 
  
 Services Rendered 

For the  
year ended  

March    31, 2025 

For the  
year ended  

March    31, 2024 

Tax Audit - - 

Trust Audit - - 

Certification fees* 10 - 
 (*Limited Review fees to both Joint Statutory Auditors) 

  



 
38. As per the IRDAI (Actuarial, Finance & Investment Function of Insurers) Regulation, 2024 and 

Master Circular on Actuarial, Finance and Investment Function of Insurers dated May 17, 2024, 
the company has implemented the recognition of gross written premium on a 1/n basis, effective 

recorded gross written premium  for applicable long-term products. This has resulted in decrease 
akhs and 384 for year ended March 

31, 2025. 
 

39. The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on February 6, 2024, approved raising 
of capital by issuance of Unsecured, rated, listed, redeemable, fully paid up, non-cumulative, 
subordinated, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs), in the nature o
15,000 Lakhs on a private placement basis, in accordance with the provisions of the IRDAI 
(Registration, Capital Structure, Transfer of Shares and Amalgamation of Insurers) Regulations, 
2024, the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021. Accordingly, the Company has allotted 15000 Unsecured, rated, listed, 
redeemable, fully paid up, non-cumulative, subordinated, Non-Convertible Debentures of the face 

of 9.85 % per annum, payable annually and having maturity of 10 years with Call Option to the 
Company at the end of 5 years from the Date of Allotment and every year thereafter. 

 
Based on the above, the Company has total borrowings by way of Non-Convertible Debentures 
(NCDs) amounting  15,000 Lakhs details of which are as under:  
 
 
a) 10 years, 15,000 nos. of 9.85% Unsecured, rated, listed, redeemable, fully paid up, non-

cumulative, subordinated, Non-
each, issued on July 25, 2024 for cash at par under issue name 9.85% UNIVERSAL SOMPO 
2034 with a call option after a period of 5 years from the date of issue. 

In terms of Rule 18(7)(b)(iv)(B) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, 
as amended, the Company is required to create Debenture Redemption Reserve out of the profits 

 
 

 
40. Based on our examination on test check basis and on verification of SOC 2 report from Service 

account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the 
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with 
except the following: 
 
The party wise commission and reinsurance records are maintained in MS Excel sheets 
accordingly the audit trail feature is not available for the same. 
 
Additionally, the audit trail wherever applicable has been preserved by the Company as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention. 

  



41. The company enters into proportional & non-proportional reinsurance treaty arrangement as a 
part of its reinsurance program and co-insurance arrangement, as a part of Risk management. 
All premium, claims, commission including sliding scale commission & profit commission 
transactions in respect of Reinsurance/ coinsurance are recorded in books of account completely 
in all aspects as of date. Periodic Statement of Accounts (SOAs) are prepared, sent and agreed 
by reinsurers and settlement is done accordingly. The party-wise ageing statements are prepared 
manually in the absence of full automation. The company periodically on balance sheet date, 
sends mail on balance confirmation as a part of company protocol. Adjustment if any, on receipt 
of consequent confirmation are accounted in books of accounts. Such adjustments were of a 
negligible amount according to the past experience. 

 
42. The Company has revised its impairment policy for other than Debt instruments investments on 

Profit & Loss Account as on March 31, 2025. 
 

43. Summary of financial statements  
 

44. Segment wise Ratios  
 

 
  



45. Previous Year Comparative 
 

     
year ended Mach 31,2024 -grouped and reclassified 

 
                          in Lakh) 
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43.  Summary of Financial Statements

Sr. No. Particulars FY 2024-25  FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

OPERATING RESULTS

1 Gross Direct Premiums 5,07,845      4,62,219       4,10,309      3,45,612      3,05,216      

2 Net Earned Premium # 2,36,901      2,20,900       2,16,130      1,35,721      1,31,135      

3 Income from Investments (net) @          28,292 23,020                   19,946          20,627          21,126 

4 Other Income (Pls Specific)

Others - Miscellaneous Income 316              805               209              140              144              

5 Total Income 2,65,509      2,44,726       2,36,285      1,56,488      1,52,404      

6 Commissions (Net) (Including Brokerage) 17,534         2,017            (8,820)          6,693           3,668           

7 Operating Expenses 42,329         38,161          55,297         33,115         27,340         

8 Net Incurred Claims 1,82,776      1,80,568       1,68,977      1,05,548      1,18,594      

9 Change in Unexpired Risk Reserve         (12,655) 9,968                          958         (25,470) 13,975         

10 Operating Profit / (Loss) 22,870         23,980          20,831         11,132         2,802           

NON-OPERATING RESULTS

11 Total Income under shareholders' account 2,193           1,424            4,209           3,195           270              

12 Profit / (Loss) before tax 25,063         25,404          25,040         14,328         3,073           

13 Provision for tax 6,077           7,239            7,362           2,469           2,136           

14 Profit / (Loss) after tax 18,986         18,165          17,679         11,859         936              

MISCELLANEOUS

15 Policyholders' Account :

Total Funds 4,01,184      3,50,425       3,54,525      2,98,060      3,34,547      

Total Investments 4,01,184      3,50,425       3,54,525      2,98,060      3,34,547      

Yield on Investments* 7.65% 7.40% 6.58% 7.27% 6.87%

16 Shareholders' Account:

Total Funds 1,63,103      1,44,117       1,26,872      1,12,876      1,01,495      

Total Investments 1,26,174      1,10,822       84,069         76,084         21,322         

Yield on Investments* 7.65% 7.40% 6.58% 7.27% 6.87%

17 Paid up equity capital (including share premium) 53,580         53,580          53,580         53,580         53,580         

18 Net Worth 1,63,103      1,44,117       1,26,872      1,12,876      1,01,495      

19 Total Assets 6,66,098      5,63,862       5,71,134      5,19,521      4,72,863      

20 Yield on Total Investments 7.65% 7.40% 6.58% 7.27% 6.87%

21 Earnings per share (Rs.)

Basic 5.16             4.93              4.80             3.22             0.25             

Diluted 5.16             4.93              4.80             3.22             0.25             

22 Book Value per share (Rs.) 44.30           39.14            34.46           30.66           27.57           

23 Total Dividend Paid -               -                2,761           479              -               

24 Proposed Final Dividend -               920               920              -               -               

25 Dividend paid per share (Rs.) -               0.25              0.75             0.13             -               

26 Dividend final Dividend per share (Rs.) -               0.25              0.25             -               -               

Note: The Company has received the IRDA Registration No. 134, dated November 16, 2007

# Net of reinsurance

@ Net of Losses

* Yield on investment includes return on Fixed Deposits forming part of Cash and Bank Balances
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44B.  RATIOS FOR NON-LIFE COMPANIES FOR SEGMENT WISE

Sr. No. Performance Ratio Basis
Indian 

Operations
Foreign 

Operations
Indian 

Operations
Foreign 

Operations

1
Gross Direct Premium Growth rate 
(Segment Wise)

(GDPI (CY)- GDPI(PY))/ GDPI 
(PY)

Fire 5.99% -                    11.15% -                    
Marine Cargo 53.17% -                    33.29% -                    
Marine Hull 24.22% -                    15.89% -                    
Motor OD 9.01% -                    -0.07% -                    
Motor TP 5.69% -                    33.82% -                    
Workmen's Compensation 18.56% -                    97.28% -                    
Personal Accident 8.63% -                    -38.28% -                    
Health Insurance 106.27% -                    60.00% -                    
Travel 10.17% -                    -7.52% -                    
Liability 1.07% -                    4.12% -                    
Engineering 37.06% -                    30.45% -                    
Aviation -                    -                    -                    -                    
Trade Credit 21.51% -                    -13.56% -                    
Crop -15.95% -                    4.25% -                    
Others 7.33% -                    37.34% -                    
Total 9.87%                    -   12.65% -                    

2 Net Retention ratio (Segment Wise)
Net Premium / (Gross Direct 
Premium Income + 
Reinsurance Accepted)

Fire 4.28% -                    10.44% -                    
Marine Cargo 29.82% -                    27.29% -                    
Marine Hull 1.03% -                    1.18% -                    
Motor OD 53.92% -                    53.15% -                    
Motor TP 50.70% -                    51.72% -                    
Workmen's Compensation 95.49% -                    95.99% -                    
Personal Accident 21.40% -                    -16.47% -                    
Health Insurance 77.14% -                    83.50% -                    
Travel 94.10% -                    95.30% -                    
Liability 10.45% -                    -24.25% -                    
Engineering 14.35% -                    15.90% -                    
Aviation -                    -                    -                    -                    
Trade Credit 1.69% -                    0.65% -                    
Crop 38.95% -                    38.32% -                    
Others 33.54% -                    29.58% -                    
Total 49.00% -                    45.48% -                    

3
Net Commission ratio (Segment 
Wise)

Net Commission / Net Written 
Premium

Fire -120.90% -                    -8.61% -                    
Marine Cargo 21.47% -                    23.22% -                    
Marine Hull -706.28% -                    -1085.88% -                    
Motor OD 35.81% -                    39.44% -                    
Motor TP 3.76% -                    -3.22% -                    
Workmen's Compensation 24.09% -                    20.58% -                    
Personal Accident -63.75% -                    8.94% -                    
Health Insurance 4.61% -                    8.46% -                    
Travel 111.82% -                    99.13% -                    
Liability 61.56% -                    -37.10% -                    
Engineering 23.77% -                    34.45% -                    
Aviation -                    -                    -                    -                    
Trade Credit -423.48% -                    -1336.20% -                    
Crop -12.91% -                    -35.29% -                    
Others -10.23% -                    26.65% -                    
Total 7.03%                    -   0.96% -                    

As at March 31, 2024         As at March 31, 2025
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